
 

 
 

 

City of Westminster 
 

  
 

Committee Agenda 
 

Title: 
 

 Pension Board 

   

Meeting Date: 
 

 Tuesday 9th May, 2017 

   

Time: 
 

 7.00 pm 

   

Venue: 
 

 Room 11 - 17th Floor, Westminster City Hall, 64 Victoria 
Street, London SW1E 6QP 

   

Members: 
 

 Councillors: 
 

 

  Angela Harvey 
Adnan Mohammed 
 
Employer Representative: 
 
Marie Holmes 
 
Scheme Member 
Representatives: 
 
Dr Norman Perry 
Susan Manning 
Christopher Smith 

 

 
 

   

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting 
and listen to the discussion Part 1 of the Agenda 
 
Admission to the public gallery is by ticket, issued from the 
ground floor reception at City Hall from 6.00pm.  If you have 
a disability and require any special assistance please 
contact the Committee Officer (details listed below) in 
advance of the meeting. 
 

   

T
 

 An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for anyone 
wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter.  If you require 
any further information, please contact the Committee 
Officer, Toby Howes, Senior Committee and Governance 
Officer. 
 
Tel: 020 7641 8470; Email: thowes@westminster.gov.uk 
Corporate Website: www.westminster.gov.uk 
 
 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.westminster.gov.uk/


 

 

Note for Members: Members are reminded that Officer contacts are shown at the end of 
each report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.  
With regard to item 2, guidance on declarations of interests is included in the Code of 
Governance; if Members and Officers have any particular questions they should contact 
the Head of Legal & Democratic Services in advance of the meeting please. 
 

AGENDA 

PART 1 (IN PUBLIC)  

1.   MEMBERSHIP/APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN AND VICE 
CHAIRMAN 

 

 To appoint a Chairman and Vice Chairman and to note any 
changes to the membership. 
 

 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 To receive declarations by Members and Officers of the 
existence and nature of any personal and prejudicial interests in 
matters on this agenda. 
 

 

3.   MINUTES (Pages 1 - 8) 

 To approve the Minutes of the Pension Board meeting held on 6 
March 2017. 
 

 

4.   MINUTES OF PENSION FUND COMMITTEE  

 Minutes of the Pension Fund Committee meeting held on 21 
March 2017 to be circulated separately. 
 

 

5.   REVIEW OF THE INVESTMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT (Pages 9 - 48) 

 Report of the City Treasurer. 
 

 

6.   RISK REGISTER REVIEW - FOCUSING ON RISK 25 (Pages 49 - 74) 

 Report of the City Treasurer. 
 

 

7.   MONITORING OF DATA TO SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL (Pages 75 - 78) 

 Report of the Director of People Services. 
 

 

8.   MEMBERS' PERSPECTIVE OF THE PENSION FUND 
ADMINISTRATION 

(Pages 79 - 80) 

 Report of the Director of People Services. 
 

 



 
 

 

9.   FUTURE WORK PLAN (Pages 81 - 88) 

 Report of the City Treasurer. 
 

 

10.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS 
URGENT 

 

 
 
Charlie Parker  
Chief Executive 
3 May 2017 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
1 

 

 

 
CITY OF WESTMINSTER 

 
 

MINUTES 

 
 

Pension Board  
 

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS 
 
Minutes of a meeting of the Pension Board held on Monday 6th March, 2017, 
Room 15, 17th Floor, City Hall, 64 Victoria Street London SW1E 6QP. 
 
Members Present: Dr Norman Perry (Chairman and Scheme Member 
Representative), Councillor Angela Harvey (Vice-Chairman and Employer 
Representative), Marie Holmes (Employer Representative), Susan Manning (Scheme 
Member Representative) and Christopher Smith (Scheme Member Representative). 
 
Officers Present: Peter Carpenter (Interim Tri-Borough Director of Treasury and 
Pensions), Nikki Parsons (Pension Fund Officer), Lee Witham (Director of People 
Services), Sarah Hay (Pensions and Payroll Adviser) and Toby Howes (Senior 
Committee and Governance Officer). 
 
Apology for Absence: Councillor Adnan Mohammed (Employer Representative). 
 
 
1 MEMBERSHIP/APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
1.1 RESOLVED: 

 
That Dr Norman Perry be elected Chairman and Councillor Angela Harvey be 
elected Vice Chairman respectively for the meeting. 
 

1.2 There were no changes to the membership. 
 
1.3 On behalf of Members, the Chairman thanked Councillor Peter Cuthbertson 

for his work as the previous Chairman of the Board. 
 
2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
2.1 Christopher Smith (Scheme Member Representative) declared that he was 

the Branch Secretary of Unison and had the interests of staff as a whole, 
however he did not consider this a prejudicial interest and remained present 
to consider all items on the agenda. 

 
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 
2 

 

3 MINUTES 
 
3.1 That the minutes of the meeting held on 29th November 2016 be signed by the 

Chairman as a correct record of proceedings. 
 
4 MINUTES OF PENSION FUND COMMITTEE 
 
4.1 It was noted that the Minutes of the Pension Fund Committee meeting taking 

place on 15 November 2016 would be circulated separately. 
 
5 BRIEFING ON TRIENNIAL VALUATION RESULTS 
 
5.1 Peter Carpenter (Interim Tri-Borough Director of Treasury and Pensions) 

introduced the item and advised that the final valuation report, the Funding 
Strategy Statement and the Investment Strategy Statement would be 
presented to the Pension Fund Committee at the 21 March 2017 meeting.  

 
5.2 Graeme Muir (Barnett Waddingham) from the Fund’s Actuary then gave a 

presentation updating Members on the 2016 triennial valuation. He began by 
explaining the purpose of valuations and advised that the 2016 triennial 
valuation would be subject to Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) 
Regulations, which included the need to certify levels of employer 
contributions to secure the solvency of the Fund and the long term cost 
efficiency of the Scheme. The valuation should also have regard to the 
Funding Strategy Statement and it was recognised that different approaches 
were possible for different employer types. In respect of the Funding Strategy 
Statement, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(CIPFA) had recently issued revised guidance reminding administering 
authorities that securing solvency and long term cost efficiency was a 
regulatory requirement whereas a constant as possible (primary) contribution 
rate remains only a desirable outcome. Graeme Muir stated the valuation 
would be subject to revised legislation, including “Section 13”, where an 
independent review carried out by the Government’s Actuary Department of 
the valuation and employer rates would be undertaken to check that they are 
appropriate and to require remedial action where the review identifies a 
problem.  

 
5.3 Graeme Muir informed Members that the valuation was based on a number of 

assumptions, and the model used by the Actuary used assumptions assessed 
over a six months period spanning the valuation date, a technique known as 
‘smoothing’, to give stability. Neutral assumptions that were neither 
deliberately optimistic nor pessimistic were used and where there was 
uncertainty, prudence would be introduced. Members noted the assumptions 
used in respect of inflation levels, salary increases, the discount rates 
including for gilts, bonds and equities. With regard to demographic 
assumptions, Graeme Muir advised that there had been a review of Fund 
mortality over the period of 2011 – 2015 and life expectancy after retirement, 
particularly for males, was anticipated to increase. 

 
5.4 Graeme Muir advised that the 2016 valuation had identified that the overall 

funding level of the Fund was 80% and the deficit recovery period was 18 

Page 2



 
3 

 

years as of March 2016, compared to 74% and 25 years respectively for the 
2013 valuation. In order to achieve deficit reduction, pension contributions 
would increase and there would also be additional cash injections of £10m per 
annum for 2017, 2018 and 2019 respectively. In terms of standardised 
funding levels, Graeme Muir advised that the Fund was fairly average 
compared to other funds according to an assessment undertaken by the 
Scheme Advisory Board.  

 
5.5 During Members’ discussions, it was remarked that it would be desirable to be 

provided with presentations prior to meetings and this was noted by officers. 
Members stated that it would be helpful to receive information on other bodies 
that were part of the Fund, including details of their contributions, and it was 
noted that other bodies expected some of the Members to report back to them 
on the Fund. In response to a document providing details of contributions from 
participating organisations circulated by Peter Carpenter at the meeting, it 
was acknowledged that statutory bodies within the Fund had statutory duties, 
whilst it was queried why admissions bodies were considered as high risk, 
especially as the Government would provide financial protection if academies 
got into difficulties. It was also asked if academies were still valued over a 7 
year period. Members asked whether mortality rates varied between the 
public and private sectors and would increasing the retirement age have a 
significant impact on the Fund. It was also asked why the Homes and 
Communities Agency’s element of the Fund was considerably higher funded 
than the Council’s. In respect of prudence and sound investments, Members 
asked how the Council performed compared to other councils. 

 
5.6 Members expressed an interest in receiving training specifically on the 

triennial valuation in future. A Member emphasised the importance of 
highlighting the positive aspects of the Fund and in communicating the 
outcomes of valuation to scheme members.  It was noted that the scheme 
members were guaranteed a pension, however it was important to manage 
the scheme effectively in order to ensure the same levels, otherwise this may 
impact on employees or services. 

 
5.7 In reply to the issues raised by Members, Graeme Muir advised that 

academies were now classified as scheduled bodies and so their valuation 
period would be longer than 7 years. It was noted that life expectancy 
amongst public sector workers was generally higher than private sector 
workers and those with pensions in addition to state pensions tended to live 
longer. In respect of retirement age, Graeme Muir advised that those retiring 
later tended to die sooner. Increases in life expectancy had also slowed down 
more recently with a smaller increase in age anticipated. He stated that the 
Homes and Communities Agency’s funding levels of its fund were much 
higher than others because it held very large assets. Members noted that the 
Council achieved around a 7% return from its investments which was fairly 
average compared to other funds. Graeme Muir advised that Barnett 
Waddingham could provide training on the triennial valuation to Members.   

 
5.8 Peter Carpenter advised that the longer the repayment period for paying off 

the Fund’s deficit was, the more that would ultimately be paid off because of 

Page 3



 
4 

 

higher interest rates, which was why steps to reduce the repayment period 
were being taken. 

 
5.9 RESOLVED: 
 
 That the briefing on the triennial valuation results be noted. 
 
6 RISK REGISTER REVIEW 
 
6.1 Nikki Parsons (Pension Fund Officer) presented the report and advised that it 

was proposed that the impact scores for each risk be broken down further and 
rated against their impact on cost/budget or impact on pension scheme 
members. A report on this matter would also be considered at the next 
Pension Fund Committee. 

 
6.2 During Members’ discussions, it was asked whether it would always be 

possible to assess a risk’s impact purely on cost/budget or on pension 
scheme members, as some risks could have impacts both in terms of finance 
and on scheme members. Members queried whether changes to the Risk 
Register had been debated at tri-borough level. A request was made for the 
Risk Register to be produced at A3 size in future. In respect of risk 14, a 
Member expressed some concerns at the way the London Collective 
Investment Vehicle (CIV) was developing, with governance in particular an 
issue that needed to be considered further. Assurance was needed that the 
CIV would take governance issues seriously and the Council was satisfied 
with these arrangements. Engagement with the Department for Communities 
and Local Government on this matter could also be undertaken. 

 
6.3 Members expressed serious concerns that problems remained in respect of 

BT being unable to provide monthly or end of year interface files for Surrey 
County Council which may impact on service to pension scheme members 
and on the 2016 triennial valuation as identified in risk 25 on the Risk Register 

 
6.4 In reply to issues raised by Members, Peter Carpenter advised that in respect 

of the London CIV, one class asset, Baillie Gifford, had been moved to the 
CIV to date, however the London CIV was more advanced than other funding 
pools. There would be future reports updating Members on the London CIV 
and Members noted that the Fund would still be owned by the Westminster 
Pension Fund even as further assets were transferred to the CIV. Peter 
Carpenter advised that in most cases, it would be possible to identify a risk as 
having an impact either on cost/budget or on scheme members, however 
where it may impact on both, consideration would need to be given as to 
where the greater impact may lie. Nikki Parsons added that the first 19 risks 
on the Risk Register were primarily financial, whilst risk 20 onwards was more 
likely to impact on scheme members. She confirmed that tri-borough officers 
had met to discuss changes to the Risk Register. 

 
6.5 Lee Witham (Director of People Services) advised that there had been no 

significant improvement in respect of the performance of BT in relation to risk 
25 in the last 6 months. Sarah Hay (Pensions and Payroll Adviser) added that 
risk 25 could now be regarded as a high risk. 

Page 4



 
5 

 

6.6 Members requested an update on risk 25 at the next meeting. 
 
7 PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

UPDATE 
 
7.1 Lee Witham (Director of People Services) presented the report and advised 

that work had been undertaken with Surrey County Council to produce a 
refreshed set of key performance indicators (KPIs) to more accurately 
represent the experience of pension scheme members. Every effort had been 
made to ensure that Surrey County Council put more resources in place to 
address issues of concern. He acknowledged that at the moment, some 
scheme members’ experience of pension administration matters was not 
entirely positive.  

 
7.2 In respect of issues regarding BT’s performance, there had been three key 

areas of concern. With regard to auto re-enrolment, this had now been 
resolved. However concerns remained for starters and leavers, despite a 
huge focus from officers and BT in the last two months to address this. Lee 
Witham advised that the Pension Recovery Plan had been affected by 
commercial issues concerning the contract between the Council and BT in the 
last three weeks and this had complicated matters. There were also some 
inaccuracies in respect of annual benefit statement, with some being sent out 
late or still containing inaccuracies. Officers were pressing BT to ensure that 
more accurate data was produced. 

 
7.3 During Members’ discussions, it was asked whether other bodies participating 

in the pension scheme were similarly affected by pension administration 
matters. Marie Holmes (Scheme Member Representative) advised that in her 
experience, Surrey County Council had responded well to her queries and her 
organisation, like many others, used a different payroll provider to the 
Council’s. Christopher Smith emphasised that People Services had worked 
very hard to address issues and it was difficult to understand why some of the 
problems were still being experienced, as BT and Surrey County Council were 
being paid to provide a service, particularly in respect of BT’s performance. 
He welcomed any thoughts from the Chief Executive in identifying when these 
problems will come to an end. Members asked whether there were any 
arrangements in place to help scheme members who may be in real financial 
difficulty because of late payments. It was noted that the targets for the KPIs 
were 100%, with many not being met and it queried whether a more realistic 
target should be set in some cases.  

 
7.4 Members commented on the division of work between the Board and the 

Pension Fund and it was suggested that the Board could take a lead role in 
considering pension administration matters. It was also recognised that the 
Board should perform a scrutiny function, particularly in respect of compliance 
to the LGPS and regulations.  

 
7.5 In reply to questions raised by Members, Lee Witham acknowledged that 

there was more work to do to meet the KPI targets and he felt that it would be 
appropriate that one of the areas the Board focuses on includes pension 
administration performance. Sarah Hay (Pensions and Payroll Adviser) 

Page 5



 
6 

 

advised that emergency payments could be made where scheme members 
had got into financial difficulties due to late pension payments. Peter 
Carpenter advised that the Chief Executive held high level meetings with BT 
every two weeks to discuss their performance, the problems being 
experienced and the steps being taken to address these. 

 
8 YEAR END PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION UPDATE 
 
8.1 Sarah Hay presented the report and updated Members with regard to the 

situation regarding Annual Benefit Statements. BT were currently addressing 
issues with regard to around 250 statements that had been withheld because 
of absence periods queries. A number of queries had also been raised by 
Council staff concerning statements that had been released, and following the 
preparation of a new file prepared by BT, a quality assurance of samples of 
data had been undertaken by People Services and a revised report had been 
sent to Surrey County Council on 24 February 2017 for their consideration 
and feedback. 

 
8.2 Sarah Hay advised Members that consideration was being given to using 

Western Union to provide a life certificate service for scheme members who 
lived abroad and consideration of the costs involved was being undertaken. 
Officers recognised that the performance of BT was not to the level required 
and an improvement plan was in place to rectify this. The refreshed key 
performance indicators would also allow more detailed monitoring of Surrey 
County Council’s pensions administration performance. 

 
8.3 In reply to a query from a Member, Sarah Hay advised that some scheme 

members drawing pensions were residing in other European Union countries 
and that Western Union had a sufficient presence in these countries that 
would enable it to provide a life certificate service. 

 
9 FUTURE WORK PLAN AND ALLOCATION OF WORK AREAS 
 
9.1 Peter Carpenter presented the report and advised that two representatives of 

the Board were invited to attend the next Pension Fund Committee meeting 
on 21 March 2017 to agree the areas of work to be distributed between the 
Board and Committee. The Board had previously discussed suggestions for 
areas it could scrutinise which did not duplicate the work undertaken by the 
Committee at the 29 November 2016 meeting. Peter Carpenter suggested 
that areas the Board could consider focusing on included ensuring that the 
Investment Strategy Statement and the Funding Strategy Statement complied 
with changes in legislation, the Admissions Strategy and twice yearly updates 
on progress with the London CIV. 

 
9.2 During Members’ discussions, it was suggested that the Board could include 

progress on compliance with The Pensions Regulator. The Board agreed that 
communication be a topic on the work plan, including consideration of how 
communicating messages to include all organisations that were members of 
the pension scheme be undertaken. Messages could include positive news in 
respect of the triennial valuation. It was also suggested that newsletters could 
be sent to scheme members providing updates on the pension scheme and 

Page 6



 
7 

 

providing key messages and useful information. Messages on the pension 
scheme could also be communicated by the Board to scheme members with 
the assistance of People Services or the Communications Team. It was 
emphasised that the Pension Fund website should take into account the 
needs of scheme members from all bodies that were part of the scheme, 
whilst it was also acknowledged that some did not have work email 
addresses. Members also suggested that statements be available for 
downloading and that self-service be available to scheme members on the 
website.  

 
9.3 At the request of the Chairman, Peter Carpenter agreed to discuss with the 

Chairman of the Pension Fund Committee of the possibility of all Board 
Members attending the next Committee meeting on 21 March 2017 to discuss 
allocation of work between the two bodies. 

 
9.4 RESOLVED: 
 
 That the contents of the report be noted and that it be agreed that Pension 

Board representatives discuss allocation of Pension Fund work areas with the 
Pension Fund Committee at the next Committee meeting on 21 March 2017. 

 
10 ANY OTHER BUSINESS THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
 
10.1 There was no other business to consider. 
 
 
The Meeting ended at 9.27 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 
CHAIRMAN:   DATE  

 
 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Pension Board 
 
 

  
Date: 
 

9 May 2017 

Classification: 
 

General Release 

Title: Scrutiny of changes to Investment Regulations 
Implemented on the 1st April 2017 – The 
Investment Strategy Statement 
  

  
Report of: 
 

Steven Mair 
City Treasurer 
 

Wards Involved: 
 

All 

Policy Context: 
 

Effective control over Council Activities  

Financial Summary:  
 

There are no financial implications arising from 
this report 
 

  
 

1 Executive Summary 
 
1.1 The Pension Fund Committee was required as of the 1st April 2017 to 

implement Investment Strategy Statements (ISS) and Funding Strategy 
Statements (FSS) to replace existing Funding Statements. The ISS and 
updated FSS were approved at the Pension Fund Committee on the 
21st March 2017. 

 
1.2 The investment environment under the new regulations is one of 

increased freedom but with more onerous justification of investment 
policy together with greater requirements to consult with interested 
parties and to report on the application of policy. 

 
1.3 The Pension Fund Committee has not had to alter its current 

investment strategy.  It may well have to consider the extent of 
diversification and the adequacy of risk management, which were 
already anticipated post the actuarial review which has taken place over 
the last year. 

 
1.4 The new ISS sets out the Council’s policy on ethical, social and 

corporate governance issues for both its own investments and also 
those being managed through the London CIV.   

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



 

 
1.5 The Pension Board must scrutinise the document fulfil its remit and 

ensure that the document is compliant to the relevant legislation and fit 
for purpose 

 
2 Recommendation 

 
2.1 That the Board scrutinise the new ISS to ensure that it is: 

a. Compliant with the legislative changes; 

b. Fit for purpose; 

c. Transparent and easy to understand. 

 
2.2 That the Board reports back to the Pension Fund Committee on it’s 

findings 
 

 
3 Background 
 

The Legislation 
 

3.1. The Government issued revised investment regulations in September 
2016, to have effect from 1st November 2016.  The centre piece of the 
regulations was the replacement of the Statement of Investment 
Principles (SIP) with a requirement to prepare and operate in 
accordance with an ISS.  Each scheme was required to have an ISS by 
1st April 2017. 

 
3.2. The ISS (Appendix 1) sets out the requirements of the legislation and 

the Investment Committee’s terms of reference.  The overall legislation 
is summarised in Appendix 2. The six main objectives of the legislation 
are detailed in relation to Westminster City Council’s Pension Fund 
policies and strategies.  These are: 

 
3.3 Objective 7.2 (a): A requirement to invest fund money in a wide range of 

instruments – This sets out how the investment strategy deals with 
diversification and return to meet the long term objectives of the fund; 
 

3.4 Objective 7.2(b): The authority’s assessment of the suitability of 
particular investments and types of investment – this sets out how the 
Investment Committee assesses the suitability of Investments and 
measures their suitability; 
 

3.5 Objective 7.2(c): The authority’s approach to risk, including ways in 
which risks are to be measured and managed – this sets out how the 
Investment Committee assesses the different types of risk in order to 
establish what is acceptable to ensure that the fund meets its 
obligations; 

 

Page 10



 

 
3.6 Objective 7.2(d):  The authority’s approach to pooling investments, 

including the use of collective investment vehicles – this sets out the 
Investment Committee’s approach to pooling and also what the London 
Collective Investment Vehicle (CIV) can offer in terms of Investment 
opportunities; 
 

3.7 Objective 7.2(e):  How social, environmental or corporate governance 
considerations are taken into account in the selection, non-selection, 
retention and realisation of investments – this sets out how the fund 
meets these obligations and also how potential investments with the 
London CIV will comply with these obligations; 

 
3.8 Objective 7.2(f): The exercise of rights (including voting rights) attaching 

to investments - this sets out how the fund meets these obligations and 
also how potential investments with the London CIV will be dealt with. 

 
Construction of the ISS 
 
3.9 A draft ISS was provided by the Pension Fund’s Actuary Barnett 

Waddington.  The same draft has been used across all three Councils to 
ensure standardisation. 
 

3.10 The Committee’s terms of reference are used in the document.  These 
terms of reference might need review as they have not been refreshed 
for a number of years. 

 
3.11 Objective 7.2(d):  The authority’s approach to pooling investments, 

including the use of collective investment vehicles has wording included 
from the London CIV.  Is it correct for the view to be from the London 
CIV? 
 

3.12 Objective 7.2(e):  How social, environmental or corporate governance 
considerations are taken into account in the selection, non-selection, 
retention and realisation of Investments, and Objective 7.2(f): The 
exercise of rights (including voting rights) attaching to Investments both 
have 2 sections reflecting the fact that items are invested through 
Council appointed Fund Managers and also CIV appointed Fund 
Managers. 

 
4 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE PENSION BOARD 

 
4.1 The new investment regulations and guidance provide greater freedom 

to set strategy.  The greater degree of explanation required in setting 
the investment strategy should be seen as best practice, although with 
an unwelcome degree of Government oversight 
 

4.2 The ISS presented, sets out the requirements of the legislation in 
regards to the Westminster City Council’s Pension Fund. It includes 

Page 11



 

elements of the London CIV’s ISS which will apply, to those items the 
Fund has invested through the London CIV. 

 
4.3 The Pension Board needs to be satisfied that the ISS implemented by 

the Pension meets legislative requirements and is fit for purpose.  
 

 

 
If you have any questions about this report, or wish to inspect one of 

the background papers, please contact the report author:  
 

Pete Carpenter pcarpenter@westminster.gov.uk or 020 7641 2832 
 

 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS:  
Investment Regulations and Investment Strategy Statement, Pension Fund 
Committee 15th November 2016  
Changes to Investment Regulations, Pension Fund Committee, 21st March 2017  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
APPENDICES:  

Page 12

mailto:pcarpenter@westminster.gov.uk


 

 

Appendix 1 Approved Investment Strategy Statement 
 

City of Westminster Pension Fund Investment Strategy 
Statement 2017/18 

STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT PRINCIPLES 2014 

1. Introduction 
1.1 This is the first Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) adopted by the City of 

Westminster Pension Fund (“the Fund”). 
 
Under The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment 
of Funds) Regulations 2016 the Fund is required to publish this ISS.  It replaces 
the Statement of Investment Principles which was previously required under 
Schedule 1 of The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and 
Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009. 
 
The Regulations require administering authorities to outline how they meet each 
of 6 objectives aimed at improving the investment and governance of the Fund. 

 
1.2 This Statement addresses each of the objectives included in the 2016 

Regulations: 
 

 A requirement to invest fund money in a wide range of instruments 

 The authority’s assessment of the suitability of particular investments 
and types of investment 

 The authority’s approach to risk, including the ways in which risks are 
to be measured and managed 

 The authority’s approach to pooling investments, including the use of 
collective investment vehicles 

 The authority’s policy on how social, environmental or corporate 
governance considerations are taken into account in the selection,  
non-selection, retention and realisation of investments 

 
We deal with each of these in turn below. 
 

1.3 The Pension Fund Committee (the “Committee”) of the City of Westminster 
Pension Fund oversees the management of the Fund’s assets.  Although not 
trustees, the Members of the Committee owe a fiduciary duty similar to that of 
trustees to the council-tax payers, who would ultimately have to meet any 
shortfall in the assets of the Fund, as well as to the contributors and 
beneficiaries of the Fund. 

 
1.4 The relevant terms of reference for the Committee within the Council’s 

Constitution are:  
 

The Pension Fund Committee’s responsibilities are set out in their terms of 
reference and are to have responsibility for all aspects of the investment and 

Page 13



 

other management activity of the Council’s Pension Fund, including, but not 
limited to, the following matters:  
 

 To agree the investment strategy and strategic asset allocation having 
regard to the advice of the fund managers and the Investment Consultant.  

 To monitor performance of the Superannuation Fund, individual fund 
managers, custodians, actuary and other external advisors to ensure that 
they remain suitable;  

 To determine the Fund management arrangements, including the 
appointment and termination of the appointment of the Fund Managers, 
Actuary, Custodians and Fund Advisers.  

 To agree the Statement of Investment Principles, the Funding Strategy 
Statement, the Business Plan for the Fund, the Governance Policy 
Statement, the Communications Policy Statement and the Governance 
Compliance Statement and to ensure compliance with these.  

 To approve the final accounts and balance sheet of the Superannuation 
Fund and to approve the Annual Report..  

 To receive actuarial valuations of the Superannuation Fund regarding the 
level of employers’ contributions necessary to balance the Superannuation 
Fund.  

 To oversee and approve any changes to the administration arrangements, 
material contracts and policies and procedures of the Council for the 
payment of pensions, compensation payments and allowances to 
beneficiaries.  

 To make and review an admission policy relating to admission agreements 
generally with any admission body.  

 To ensure compliance with all relevant statutes, regulations and best 
practice with both the public and private sectors.  

 To review the arrangements and managers for the provision of Additional 
Voluntary Contributions for fund members.  

 To receive and consider the Auditor’s report on the governance of the 
Pension Fund.  

 To determine the compensation policy on termination of employment and 
to make any decisions in accordance with that policy other than decisions 
in respect of the Chief Executive, Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officers 
of the Council (which fall within the remit of the Appointments Sub-
Committee).  

 To determine policy on the award of additional membership of the pension 
fund and to make any decisions in accordance with that policy other than 
decisions in respect of the Chief Executive, Chief Officers and Deputy 
Chief Officers of the Council (which fall within the remit of the 
Appointments Sub-Committee).  

 To determine policy on the award of additional pension and to make any 
decisions in accordance with that policy other than decisions in respect of 
the Chief Executive, Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officers of the 
Council (which fall within the remit of the Appointments Sub- Committee).  

 To determine policy on retirement before the age of 60 and to make any 
decisions in accordance with that policy other than decisions in respect of 
the Chief Executive, Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officers of the 
Council (which fall within the remit of the Appointments Sub- Committee).  

Page 14



 

 To determine a policy on flexible retirement and to make any decisions in 
accordance with that policy other than decisions in respect of the Chief 
Executive, Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officers of the Council (which 
fall within the remit of the Appointments Sub-Committee).  

 To determine questions and disputes pursuant to the Internal Disputes 
Resolution Procedures.  

 To determine any other investment or pension policies that may be 
required from time to time so as to comply with Government regulations 
and to make any decisions in accordance with those policies other than 
decisions in respect of the Chief Executive, Chief Officers and Deputy 
Chief Officers of the Council (which fall within the remit of the 
Appointments Sub-Committee).  
 

 
The Committee has responsibility for: 
 

 Determining an overall investment strategy and strategic asset allocation, 
with regard to diversification and the suitability of asset classes 

 Appointing the investment managers, an independent custodian, the actuary, 
the investment advisor(s) and any other external consultants considered 
necessary 

 Reviewing on a regular basis the investment managers’ performance against 
benchmarks, portfolio risk and satisfying themselves as to the managers’ 
expertise and the quality of their internal systems and controls 

 Monitoring compliance with the ISS & Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) and 
reviewing its contents 

 Reviewing policy on social, environmental and ethical considerations, and on 
the exercise of voting rights 

 
The City Treasurer and the appointed consultants and actuaries support the 
Committee.  The day-to-day management of the Fund’s assets is delegated to 
investment managers.   

 
1.5 This ISS will be reviewed at least once a year, or more frequently as required - 

in particular following valuations, future asset/liability studies and performance 
reviews, which may indicate a need to change investment policy, or significant 
changes to the FSS. 

 
1.6 Under the previous Regulations the Statement of Investment Principles required 

to state how it complies with the revised six investment principles as outlined 
within the CIPFA Pensions Panel Principles. Although not formally required 
under the 2016 Regulations this information is given in Appendix A. In addition, 
Appendix B includes a disclosure of the Fund’s policy on how the Committee 
discharge their stewardship responsibilities. 
 

Page 15



 

2. Objective 7.2 (a): A requirement to invest fund money in a wide 
range of instruments 

2.1 Funding and investment risk is discussed in more detail later in this ISS.  
However, at this stage it is important to state that the Committee is aware of the 
risks it runs within the Fund and the consequences of these risks. 

 
2.2 In order to control risk the Committee recognises that the Fund should have an 

investment strategy that has: 

 Exposure to a diverse range of sources of return, such as market, 
manager skill and through the use of less liquid holdings. 

 Diversity in the asset classes used 

 Diversity in the approaches to the management of the underlying 
assets. 

A consequence of this approach is that the Fund’s assets are invested in a wide 
range of instruments. 

 
2.3 This approach to diversification has seen the Fund dividing its assets across 4 

broad categories; UK equities, Global equities, Fixed Income and Property.  The 
size of assets invested in each category will vary depending on investment 
conditions.  However, it is important to note that each category is itself 
diversified. 

2.4  The main risk the Committee are concerned with is to ensure the long-term 
ability of the fund to meet pension, and other benefit obligations, as they fall due 
is met.  As a result the Committee place a high degree of importance on 
ensuring the expected return on the assets is sufficient to do so, and does not 
have to rely on a level of risk which the Committee considers excessive. 

 
 The Fund currently has a negative cash flow position. The Committee is mindful 

that this position may change in future and keeps the liquidity within the Fund 
monitored. 

 
 At all times the Committee takes the view that their investment decisions, 

including those involving diversification, in the best long term interest of Fund 
beneficiaries. 
 

2.5   To mitigate these risks the Committee regularly reviews both the performance 
and expected returns from the Fund’s investments to measure whether it has 
met and is likely to meet in future its return objective.  In addition to keeping 
their investment strategy and policy under regular review the Committee will 
keep this ISS under review to ensure that it reflects the approaches being 
taken. 

 

3. Objective 7.2(b): The authority’s assessment of the suitability of 
particular investments and types of investment 

3.1.1.1.1  
3.1 When assessing the suitability of investments the Committee takes into account 

a number of factors: 

 Prospective return 

Page 16



 

 Risk 

 Concentration 

 Risk management qualities the asset has, when the portfolio as a whole 
is considered 

 Geographic and currency exposures 

 Whether the management of the asset meets the Fund’s ESG criteria. 
 

3.2   Suitability is a critical test for whether or not a particular investment should be 
made. 

 
3.3   Each of the Fund’s investments has an individual performance benchmark 

which their reported performance is measured against.   
 
3.3   The Committee monitors the suitability of the Fund’s assets on a quarterly basis.  

To that end they monitor the investment returns and the volatility of the 
individual investments together with the Fund level returns and risk.  This latter 
point being to ensure the risks caused by interactions between investments 
within the portfolio is properly understood.  Where comparative statistics are 
available the Committee will also compare the Fund asset performance with 
those of similar funds. 
 

3.4   The Committee relies on external advice in relation to the collation of the 
statistics for review. 

 

4. Objective 7.2(c): The authority’s approach to risk, including ways in 
which risks are to be measured and managed 

 
4.1 The Committee recognises that there are a number of risks involved in the 

investment of the assets of the Fund amongst which are the following: 
 
4.2 Geopolitical and currency risks: 

 are measured by the value of assets (the concentration risk), in any 
one market leading to the risk of an adverse influence on investment 
values arising from political intervention; and 

 are managed by regular reviews of the actual investments relative to 
policy and through regular assessment of the levels of diversification 
within the existing policy. 

 
4.3 Manager risk: 

 is measured by the expected deviation of the prospective risk and 
return as set out in the manager(s) investment objectives, relative to 
the investment policy; and  

 is managed by monitoring the actual deviation of returns relative to 
the objective and factors inherent in the manager(s) investment 
process. 

 
4.4 Solvency and mismatching risk: 

Page 17



 

 are measured through a qualitative and quantitative assessment of 
the expected development of the liabilities relative to the current and 
alternative investment policies; and 

 are managed by assessing the progress of the actual growth of the 
liabilities relative to the selected investment policy. 

 
4.5 Liquidity risk: 

 is measured by the level of cash flow required over a specified period; 
and  

 managed by assessing the level of cash held in order to limit the 
impact of the cash flow requirements on the investment cash policy 

 
4.6 Custodial risk: 

 is measured by assessing the creditworthiness of the global 
custodian and the ability of the organisation to settle trades on time 
and provide secure safekeeping of the assets under custody. 

 
4.7 Employer contributions are based upon financial and demographic assumptions 

determined by the actuary.  The main risks to the Fund are highlighted within 
sections 12 to 15 of the Funding Strategy Statement (FSS). The risks to the 
Fund are controlled in the following ways: 

 The adoption and monitoring of asset allocation benchmarks, ranges and 
performance targets constrain the investment managers from deviating 
significantly from the intended approach while permitting the flexibility for 
managers to enhance returns 

 The appointment of more than one manager with different mandates and 
approaches provides for the diversification of manager risk  
 

4.8 The investment management agreements constrain the manager’s actions in 
areas of particular risk and set out the respective responsibilities of both the 
manager and the Fund. 
 

4.9 The Committee are aware investment risk is only one aspect of the risks facing 
the Fund.  The other key risk they are aware of is the ability of the Fund to meet 
the future contributions, support the investment risk (i.e. the level of volatility of 
investment returns) and underwrite actuarial risk, namely the volatility in the 
actuarial funding position and the impact this has on contributions. 
 

4.10 The Committee are of the view that the diversification of the Fund assets is 
sufficiently broad to ensure the investment risk is low and will continue to be low.  
When putting in place the investment strategy the Committee carefully 
considered both the individual asset risk characteristics and those of the 
combined portfolio to ensure the risks were appropriate. 

 
Estimating the likely volatility of future investment returns is difficult as it relies 
on both estimates of individual asset class returns and also the correlation 
between them.  These can be based on historic asset class information for some 
of the listed asset classes the Fund uses.  However, for other private market and 
less liquid assets it is much more difficult.   
 

Page 18



 

The Committee is also mindful that correlations change over time and at times of 
stress can be significantly different from they are in more benign market 
conditions. 
 
To help manage risk the Committee uses an external investment adviser to 
monitor the risk.  In addition when carrying out their investment strategy review 
the Committee also had different investment advisers asses the level of risk 
involved. 
 

4.11 The Fund targets a long-term return 5.1% as aligned with the latest triennial 
valuation from the Actuary. The investment strategy is considered to have a low 
degree of volatility. 
 

4.12 When reviewing the investment strategy on a quarterly basis the Committee 
considers advice from their advisers and the need to take additional steps to 
protect the value of the assets that may arise or capitalise on opportunities if 
they are deemed suitable.  

 
4.13 At each review of the Investment Strategy Statement the assumptions on risk 

and return and their impact on asset allocation will be reviewed.   
 

5 Objective 7.2(d):  The authority’s approach to pooling investments, 
including the use of collective investment vehicles.   

 
5.1 The Fund recognises the Government’s requirement for LGPS funds to pool 

their investments and is committed to pursuing a pooling solution that ensures 
maximum cost effectiveness for the Fund, both in terms of return and 
management cost.  
 

5.2 The Fund has joined the London Collective Investment Vehicle (CIV) as part of 
the Government’s pooling agenda. The London CIV has been operational for 
some time and is in the process of opening a range of sub-funds covering liquid 
asset classes, with less liquid asset classes to follow.  
 

5.3 The Fund has already transitioned assets into the London CIV with a value of 
£178m and will look to transition further liquid assets as and when there are 
suitable investment strategies available on the platform that meet the needs of 
the Fund. 
 

5.4 The Fund will transition liquid assets into the London CIV when there are 
suitable investment strategies that meet the asset allocation and investment 
strategy available on the London CIV platform. 

 
5.5 The Fund is monitoring developments and the opening of investment strategy 

fund openings on the London CIV platform with a view to transitioning liquid 
assets across to the London CIV as soon as there are suitable sub-funds to 
meet the Fund’s investment strategy requirements. 

 
5.6 The Fund holds 22.3% £280m of its assets in life funds and intends to retain 

these outside of the London CIV in accordance with government guidance on 

Page 19



 

the retention of life funds outside pools for the time being. The Fund agrees for 
the London CIV to monitor the passive funds as part of the broader pool. 

 
5.7 The Fund holds £110m or 8.8% of the Fund held in illiquid assets and these will 

remain outside of the London CIV pool. The cost of exiting these strategies 
early would have a negative financial impact on the Fund.  These will be held as 
legacy assets until such time as they mature and proceeds re-invest through the 
pool assuming it has appropriate strategies available or until the Fund changes 
asset allocation and makes a decision to disinvest. 
 

City of Westminster Total 
Fund 

Available on the 
CIV Transferred 

UKEquities  
  Majedie  May-17 (£301m) 

 Global Equities      

Baillie Gifford  Yes £178m 

LGIM      

Longview Partners  Jun-17 (£140m)   

Fixed Income      

Insight IM (Core)      

Insight IM (Gilts)     

Real Estate      

Hermes Property      

Standard Life Property      

Cash     

In-House Cash      

 
5.8 The Committee are aware that certain of the assets held within the Fund have 

limited liquidity and moving them would come at a cost.  Whilst it is the 
expectation to make use of the London CIV for the management of the majority 
of the Fund assets in the longer term, the Committee recognises that 
transitioning from the current structure to the London CIV will be a protracted 
exercise spread over a number of years to ensure unnecessary costs are not 
incurred. 

 
5.9 At each review of the investment strategy, which will happen at least every three 

years, the investment of the above assets will be actively considered by the City 
of Westminster Pension Fund, and in particular whether a collective investment 
option is appropriate. 

 
5.10 More information on the London CIV and its operation is included in Appendix D 

of this statement. 
 

6 Objective 7.2(e):  How social, environmental or corporate governance 
considerations are taken into account in the selection, non-selection, 
retention and realisation of investments 

 

Page 20



 

 
6.1 A review of the Fund’s approach to Socially Responsible Investments (SRI) was 

completed in March 2015 and is contained in the existing SIP.  The Fund 
adopted an SRI Policy which outlines its approach to the management of 
Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) issues within its investment 
portfolio.  The existing SRI Policy now needs reviewing as the last update was 
undertaken 2 years ago, although as funds are moved across to the London 
CIV, the Council will need to understand and apply its principles.  

 
The Present ESG Policy 
 
6.2 The Fund recognises that the neglect of corporate governance and corporate 

social responsibility may lead to poor or reduced shareholder returns.  The 
Committee has considered how the Fund may best implement a corporate social 
responsibility policy, given the current resources available to the Fund.  
Accordingly, the Committee has delegated social, environmental and ethical 
policy to the investment managers, but also approved a Governance Strategy. 
The Committee believes this is the most efficient approach whilst ensuring the 
implementation of policy by each manager is consistent with current best 
practice and there is appropriate disclosure and reporting of actions taken. To 
that extent, the Committee maintains a policy of non-interference with the day-
to-day decision making of the investment managers. 

 
The London Collective Investment Vehicle (CIV) ESG Policy (Wording) 
 
6.3 The Fund is committed to being a long term steward of the assets in which it 

invests and expects this approach to protect and enhance the value of the Fund 
in the long term. In making investment decisions, the Fund seeks and receives 
proper advice from internal and external advisers with the requisite knowledge 
and skills. 

 
6.4 The Fund requires its investment managers to integrate all material financial 

factors, including corporate governance, environmental, social, and ethical 
considerations, into the decision-making process for all fund investments. It 
expects its managers to follow good practice and use their influence as major 
institutional investors and long-term stewards of capital to promote good practice 
in the investee companies and markets to which the Fund is exposed 

 
6.5 The Fund expects its external investment managers (and specifically the London 

Collective Investment Vehicle through which the Fund will increasingly invest) to 
undertake appropriate monitoring of current investments with regard to their 
policies and practices on all issues which could present a material financial risk 
to the long-term performance of the fund such as corporate governance and 
environmental factors. The Fund expects its fund managers to integrate material 
ESG factors within its investment analysis and decision making 

 
6.6 Effective monitoring and identification of these issues can enable engagement 

with boards and management of investee companies to seek resolution of 
potential problems at an early stage. Where collaboration is likely to be the most 
effective mechanism for encouraging issues to be addressed, the Fund expects 

Page 21



 

its investment managers to participate in joint action with other institutional 
investors as permitted by relevant legal and regulatory codes 

 
6.7 The Fund monitors this activity on an ongoing basis with the aim of maximising 

its impact and effectiveness. 
 

6.8 The Fund will invest on the basis of financial risk and return having considered a 
full range of factors contributing to the financial risk including social, environment 
and governance factors to the extent these directly or indirectly impact on 
financial risk and return.  

 
6.9 The Fund in preparing and reviewing its Investment Strategy Statement will 

consult with interested stakeholders including, but not limited to Fund 
employers, investment managers, Local Pension Board, advisers to the Fund 
and other parties that it deems appropriate to consult with 

 

7 Objective 7.2(f): The exercise of rights (including voting rights) 
attaching to investments 

 
 
The Present Policy 
 
7.1 .The Committee has delegated the Fund’s voting rights to the investment 

managers, who are required, where practical, to make considered use of voting in 
the interests of the Fund.  The Committee expects the investment managers to 
vote in the best interests of the Fund  

 
 
The London Collective Investment Vehicle (CIV) ESG Policy (Wording) 

 
7.2 The Fund recognises the importance of its role as stewards of capital and the 

need to ensure the highest standards of governance and promoting corporate 
responsibility in the underlying companies in which its investments reside. The 
Fund recognises that ultimately this protects the financial interests of the Fund 
and its ultimate beneficiaries. The Fund has a commitment to actively exercising 
the ownership rights attached to its investments reflecting the Fund’s conviction 
that responsible asset owners should maintain oversight of the companies in 
which it ultimately invests recognising that the companies’ activities impact upon 
not only their customers and clients, but more widely upon their employees and 
other stakeholders and also wider society.  

 
 

7.3  The Fund has delegated responsibility for voting rights to the Fund’s external 
investment managers and expects them to vote in accordance with the Fund’s 
voting policy as set out in Sections 6.2 and 7.1. 

 
 

7.4 The Fund will incorporate a report of voting activity as part of its Pension Fund 
Annual report which is published on the Pension Fund website: (we do not do this 
at the moment) 

Page 22



 

 
7.5 The Fund has reviewed the London CIV Statement of Compliance with the 

Stewardship Code and has agreed to adopt this Statement. 
 

7.6 In addition, the Fund expects its investment managers to work collaboratively with 
others if this will lead to greater influence and deliver improved outcomes for 
shareholders and more broadly. 

 
7.7 The Fund through its participation in the London CIV will work closely with other 

LGPS Funds in London to enhance the level of engagement both with external 
managers and the underlying companies in which invests(Please insert as 
appropriate) 

 
In addition the Fund: 

 
7.8  Is a member of the Pension and Lifetime Savings Association (PLSA) and in this 

way joins with other investors to magnify its voice and maximise the influence of 
investors as asset owners 

 
7.9 Joins wider lobbying activities where appropriate opportunities arise. 
 
 

8   Feedback on this statement 
Any feedback on this investment Strategy Statement is welcomed. If you have 
any comments or wish to discuss any issues then please contact:  
 

Peter Carpenter – Interim Tri-Borough Director of Pensions and Treasury 
pcarpenter@westminster.gov.uk 
020 7641 2832 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23

mailto:pcarpenter@westminster.gov.uk


 

 
 
 
Investment Strategy Statement: Appendix A 
 
Compliance with CIPFA Pensions Panel Principles for investment 
decision making in the local government pension scheme in United 
Kingdom 
 

Decision Making 
Regulation 12(3) of The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and 
Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 requires an administering authority to report 
on its compliance with the six Myners’ Principles, in accordance with guidance given 
by the Secretary of State. The guidance for the Local Government Pension Scheme 
is set out in the CIPFA publication “Investment Decision Making and Disclosure in the 
Local Government Pension Scheme in the United Kingdom 2012’,  
 
The Fund aims to comply with all of the Myners’ Principles, recognising it is in all 
parties’ interests if the Fund operates to standards of investment decision-making 
and governance identified as best practice. It is also recognised as important to 
demonstrate how the Fund meets such principles and best practice.  
 
The Secretary of State has previously highlighted the principle contained in Roberts 
v. Hapwood whose administering bodies exercise their duties and powers under 
regulations governing the investment and management of Funds: 
 
“A body charged with the administration for definite purposes of funds contributed in 
whole or in part by persons other than members of that body owes, in my view, a duty 
to those latter persons to conduct that administration in a fairly business-like manner 
with reasonable care, skill and caution, and with a due and alert regard to the interest 
of those contributors who are not members of the body. Towards these latter persons 
the body stands somewhat in the position of trustees or managers of others”. 
 
The Myners’ Principles are seen as supporting this approach. The principles, together 
with the Fund’s position on compliance, are set out below: 
 

Principle 1 - Effective decision-making 
Administrating authorities should ensure that: 

 Decisions are taken by persons or organisations with the skills, 
knowledge, advice and resources necessary to make them effectively and 
monitor their implementation; and 

 Those persons or organizations have sufficient expertise to be able to 
evaluate and challenge the advice they receive, and manage conflicts of 
interest. 

 
 
Full Compliance 
 

Page 24



 

The Council has delegated the management and administration of the Fund to the  
Committee, which meets at least quarterly. The responsibilities of the Committee are 
described in paragraph 1.4 of the ISS. 
 
The Committee is made up of elected members of the Council who each have voting 
rights.     
 
The Committee obtains and considers advice from and is supported by the City 
Treasurer, Tri-Borough Director of Treasury & Pensions, and as necessary from the 
Fund’s appointed actuary, investment managers and advisors.    
 
The Committee has delegated the management of the Fund’s investments to 
professional investment managers, appointed in accordance with the scheme’s 
regulations, whose activities are specified in detailed investment management 
agreements and regularly monitored.  
 
Business plans are presented to the Committee annually. 
 
Several of the Committee members have extensive experience of dealing with 
Investment matters and training is made available to new Committee members.  
 

Principle 2 - Clear objectives 
An overall investment objective(s) should be set for the Fund that takes 
account of the pension liabilities, the potential impact on local tax payers, the 
strength of the covenant for non-local authority employers, and the attitude to 
risk of both the administering authority and scheme employers, and these 
should be clearly communicated to advisors and investment managers. 
 
Full Compliance 
 
The aims and objectives of the Fund are set out within the FSS and within the ISS. 
The main fund objective is to meet the cost of pension liabilities and to enable 
employer contribution rates to be kept as nearly constant as possible at reasonable 
cost to the taxpayers and admitted bodies.  
 
The investment strategy has been set with the objective of controlling the risk that the 
assets will not be sufficient to meet the liabilities of the Fund while achieving a good 
return on investment (see paragraphs 4 and 5 above). The approach taken reflects 
the Fund’s liabilities and was decided upon without reference to any other funds. The 
Fund’s performance is measured against the investment objective on a quarterly 
basis. 
 
The Fund’s strategy is regularly reviewed.  
 

Principle 3 – Risk and liabilities 
In setting and reviewing their investment strategy, administrating authorities 
should take account of the form and structure of liabilities. These include the 
implications for local tax payers, the strength of the covenant for participating 
employers, the risk of their default and longevity risk. 
 

Page 25



 

Full Compliance 
 
The Committee has, in conjunction with its advisers, agreed an investment strategy 
that is related to the Fund’s liabilities. An actuarial valuation of the Fund takes place 
every three years, with the most recent triennial valuation taking place in 2016. The 
investment strategy is designed to give diversification and specialisation and achieve 
optimum return against acceptable risk. 
 
The asset allocation of the Fund is set to maximise the potential to close the funding 
deficit over future years.  The current allocation is outlined in paragraph 4.3 of the 
SIP. 
 
 

Principle 4 – Performance Assessment 
Arrangements should be in place for the formal measurement of performance 
of the investments, investment managers and advisors. Administering 
authorities should also periodically make a formal assessment of their own 
effectiveness as a decision-making body and report on this to scheme 
members 
 
Full Compliance  
 
The IAC has appointed investment managers with clear index strategic benchmarks 
(see paragraph 4.2 above) within an overall Investment objective which place 
maximum accountability for performance against that benchmark on the manager. 
 
The managers are monitored at quarterly intervals against their agreed benchmarks, 
and independent detailed monitoring of the Fund’s performance is carried out by 
Deloittes, the Fund’s advisor and by Northern Trust, the Fund’s custodian who 
provide the performance figures. Moreover portfolio risk is measured on quarterly 
basis and the risk/return implications of different strategic options are fully evaluated.  
 
The advisor is assessed on the appropriateness of asset allocation recommendations 
and the quality of advice given. 
 
The actuary is assessed on the quality and consistency of the actuarial advice 
received. Both the advisor and the actuary have fixed term contracts which when 
expired are tendered for under the OJEU procedures. 
 
The Committee monitors the investment decisions it has taken, including the 
effectiveness of these decisions. In addition the Committee receives quarterly reports 
as to how the Fund has performed against their investment objective.  
 

Principle 5 – Responsible Ownership 
Administering authorities should: 

 Adopt, or ensure their investment managers adopt, the Institutional 
Shareholders Committee Statement of Principles on the responsibilities 
of shareholders and agents. 

 Include a statement of their policy on responsible ownership in the 
statement of investment principles. 

Page 26



 

 Report periodically to scheme members on the discharge of such 
responsibilities. 

 
Full Compliance 
 
The Fund is committed to making full use of its shareholder rights.  The approach 
used is outlined in paragraph 8 of the ISS and in the Fund’s SRI Policy. Authority has 
been delegated to the investment managers to exercise voting rights on behalf of the 
Fund. The investment managers are required to report how they have voted in their 
quarterly reports. 
 
The Fund believes in using its influence as a shareholder to promote corporate social 
responsibility and high standards of corporate governance in the companies in which 
it invests – the Fund’s approach to this is outlined in paragraph 7 of the ISS and in 
the Fund’s SRI Policy.  
 

Principle 6 – Transparency and reporting 
Administering authorities should: 

 Act in a transparent manner, communicating with stakeholders on issues 
relating to their management of investments, its governance and risks, 
including performance against stated objectives. 

 Provide regular communications to scheme members in the form they 
consider most appropriate. 

 
Full Compliance 
 
Links to the Governance Compliance Statement, the ISS, the FSS, and the 
Communications Statement are all included in the Pensions Fund Annual Report 
which is published and is accessible to stakeholders of the Fund on the Council’s 
web site, and a website developed specifically for the Fund.  
 
All Committee meetings are open to members of the public and agendas and minutes 
are published on the Council’s website and internal intranet. 
  

Page 27



 

Investment Strategy Statement: Appendix B 
 

Compliance with the Stewardship Code 
 
The Stewardship Code is a set of principles or guidelines released in 2010 and 
updated in 2012 by the Financial Reporting Council directed at institutional investors 
who hold voting rights in United Kingdom companies. Its principal aim is to make 
shareholders, who manage other people's money, be active and engage in corporate 
governance in the interests of their beneficiaries. 
 
The Code applies to pension funds and adopts the same "comply or explain" 
approach used in the UK Corporate Governance Code. This means that it does not 
require compliance with principles but if fund managers and institutional investors do 
not comply with any of the principles set out, they must explain why they have not 
done so. 
 
The seven principles, together with the council’s position on compliance, are set out 
below: 
 

1. Publicly disclose their policy on how they will discharge their 
stewardship responsibilities. 

  
The Stewardship responsibilities are outlined in section 1.4 of the ISS, which outlines 
the terms of reference of the Committee.  
 
Investment Managers, authorised under the regulations, are appointed to manage 
virtually all the assets of the Fund.  The Committee actively monitor the Fund 
Managers through quarterly performance analysis, annual and periodic meetings with 
the Fund Managers and through direct monitoring by the Fund’s investment advisor, 
which includes monitoring and reporting on: 

 Fund manager performance 

 Investment Process compliance and changes 

 Changes in personnel (joiners and leavers) 

 Significant portfolio developments 

 Breaches of the IMA 

 Business wins and losses; and 

 Corporate and other issues. 
 
Voting is delegated to Fund Managers through the Investment Management 
Agreement (IMA). 
 
The fund will ensure that all its equity, fixed income and diversified managers sign up 
to theFRC Stewardship Code including: Majedie, Baillie Gifford, LGIM, Longview 
Partners, Insight, Hermes and Standard Life. 
 
 
 

Page 28



 

2. Have a robust policy on managing conflicts of interest in relation to 
stewardship and this policy should be publicly disclosed. 

  

The Committee encourages its fund managers to have effective policies addressing 
potential conflicts of interest.  

 

Committee members are also required to make declarations of interest prior to all 
Committee meetings.  

  

3. Monitor their investee companies. 
 
Day-to-day responsibility for managing the Fund’s investments are delegated to the 
relevant fund managers, who are expected to monitor companies, intervene where 
necessary, and report back regularly on activity undertaken.  
 
The Fund’s expectations with regards to voting and engagement activities are 
outlined in its SRI Policy.  
 
Fund Manager Internal Control reports are monitored, with breaches reported back to 
the Committee.  
 

4.   Establish clear guidelines on when and how they will escalate their 
activities as a method of protecting and enhancing shareholder 
value. 

  
Day-to-day interaction with companies is delegated to the Fund’s asset managers, 
including the escalation of engagement when necessary. The Fund’s expectations 
with regards to voting and engagement activities are outlined in its SRI Policy.  
 
The Fund Managers are expected to have their own SRI/ESG policy and to disclose 
their guidelines for such activities in their own statement of adherence to the 
Stewardship Code.  
 

5.    Willing to act collectively with other investors where appropriate. 
  
The Fund seeks to work collaboratively with other institutional shareholders in order 
to maximize the influence that it can have on individual companies. 
 

6.    Have a clear policy on voting and disclosure of voting activity. 
   
The Fund currently votes on all decisions and this is reported via Northern Trust. The 
Fund’s approach to voting is clearly outlined in the ISS and SRI Policy,  
 

7. Report periodically on their stewardship and voting activities. 
 
A section on voting is included in each quarterly Business Plan Update, with a yearly 
review of the policy. 
 

Page 29



 

The Fund’s annual report includes information about the Fund’s voting and 
engagement work 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 30



 

Investment Strategy Statement: Appendix C – Risk Register 
 

 

 
 

 

   Residual 
risk score 

   

Ref Risk Mitigating Actions 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

Im
p

a
c
t Risk 

Rating 
Officer 

responsible 

Next 
Next 

Review 
Date 

1 

STRATEGIC: INVESTMENT 
That the combination of assets in 
the investment portfolio fails to 
fund the liabilities in the long term.  

 Investment strategy in place and 
reviewed periodically. 

 Performance is measured against a 
liability based benchmark. 

 Fund performance is reviewed 
quarterly. 

2 3 

Low 
 
6 
 
 

City Treasurer 
 March 
2016 

2 

STRATEGIC: INVESTMENT 
Fund managers fail to achieve the 
returns agreed in their 
management agreements. 

 Independent monitoring of fund 
manager performance by custodian 
against targets. 

 Investment adviser retained to keep 
watching brief. 

 Fund manager performance is 
reviewed quarterly. 

3 3 

Low 
 
9 
 
 

City Treasurer 
 March 
2016 

3 

STRATEGIC: INVESTMENT 
Failure of custodian or 
counterparty. 

 At time of appointment, ensure 
assets are separately registered and 
segregated by owner. 

 Review of internal control reports on 
an annual basis. 

 Credit rating kept under review. 

2 3 

Low 
 
6 
 

City Treasurer 
 March 
2016 

 

4 STRATEGIC: FUNDING 
The level of inflation and interest 
rates assumed in the valuation 
may be inaccurate leading to 
higher than expected liabilities. 

 Review at each triennial valuation 
and challenge actuary as required. 

 Growth assets and inflation linked 
assets in the portfolio should rise as 
inflation rises. 
 

4 3 

Medium 
 

12 
 
 

 
 
 

City Treasurer 

 March 
2016 

5 

STRATEGIC: FUNDING 
There is insufficient cash available 
in the Fund to meet pension 
payments leading to investment 
assets being sold at sub-optimal 
prices to meet pension payments. 
 

 Cashflow forecast maintained and 
monitored. 

 Cashflow position reported to sub-
committee quarterly. 

 Cashflow requirement is a factor in 
current investment strategy review. 

2 1 

Very Low 
 
2 
 

City Treasurer 
March 
2016 

6 

STRATEGIC: FUNDING 
Scheme members live longer than 
expected leading to higher than 
expected liabilities. 
 
 

 Review at each triennial valuation 
and challenge actuary as required. 

 
4 2 

Low 
 
8 
 
 

City Treasurer 
 March 
2016 

 

7 

STRATEGIC: FUNDING 
Scheme matures more quickly 
than expected due to public sector 
spending cuts, resulting in 
contributions reducing and pension 
payments increasing. 

 Review maturity of scheme at each 
triennial valuation. 

 Deficit contributions specified as lump 
sums, rather than percentage of 
payroll to maintain monetary value of 
contributions. 

 Cashflow position monitored monthly. 
 

2 3 

Low 
 

6 
 
 

City Treasurer 
March 
2016 

8 

STRATEGIC: REGULATION 
Pensions legislation or regulation 
changes resulting in an increase in 
the cost of the scheme or 
increased administration. 

 Maintain links with central 
government and national bodies to 
keep abreast of national issues. 

 Respond to all consultations and 
lobby as appropriate to ensure 
consequences of changes to 
legislation are understood. 
 

3 4 

Medium 
 

12 
 
 

City Treasurer 
and Acting 

Director of HR 

March 
2016 

 

Page 31



 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

9 

STRATEGIC: REGULATION 
Introduction of European Directive 
MiFID II results is a restriction of 
Fund’s investment options and an 
increase in costs 
 

 Officers are engaging with Fund 
Managers to understand the position 
better 

 Knowledge and Skills Policy in place 
for Officers and Members of the 
Committee 

 Maintain links with central 
government and national bodies to 
keep abreast of national issues. 
 

2 2 

Very Low 
 
4 City Treasurer 

 March 
2016 

10 

OPERATIONAL: GOVERNANCE 
Failure to comply with legislation 
leads to ultra vires actions 
resulting in financial loss and/or 
reputational damage. 
 

 Officers maintain knowledge of legal 
framework for routine decisions. 

 Eversheds retained for consultation 
on non-routine matters. 

2 2 

Very Low 
 
4 
 

City Treasurer 
 March 
2016 

 

11 

OPERATIONAL: GOVERNANCE 
Committee members do not have 
appropriate skills or knowledge to 
discharge their responsibility 
leading to inappropriate decisions. 
 

 External professional advice is sought 
where required 

 Knowledge and skills policy in place 
(subject to Committee Approval) 
 

 

3 3 

Low 
 
9 
 
 

City Treasurer 
 March 
2016 

 

12 

OPERATIONAL: GOVERNANCE 
Officers do not have appropriate skills 
and knowledge to perform their roles 
resulting in the service not being 
provided in line with best practice and 
legal requirements.  Succession 
planning is not in place leading to 
reduction of knowledge when an officer 
leaves. 

 Person specifications are used at 
recruitment to appoint officers with 
relevant skills and experience. 

 Training plans are in place for all 
officers as part of the performance 
appraisal arrangements. 

 Shared service nature of the pensions 
team provides resilience and sharing 
of knowledge. 

 

3 3 

Low 
 

9 
 

City Treasurer 
and Acting 

Director of HR 

March 
2016 

13 OPERATIONAL: GOVERNANCE 
Inadequate, inappropriate or 
incomplete investment or actuarial 
advice is actioned leading to a financial 
loss or breach of legislation. 
 

 At time of appointment ensure 
advisers have appropriate 
professional qualifications and quality 
assurance procedures in place. 

 Committee and officers scrutinise and 
challenge advice provided. 
 

2 2 

Very Low 
 

4 
 

City Treasurer 
 March 
2016 

 

14 

OPERATIONAL: GOVERNANCE 
London CIV has inadequate resources 
to monitor the implementation of 
investment strategy and as a 
consequence are unable to address 
underachieving fund managers. 

 Pension Fund Committee Chair is a 
member of the Joint member 
Committee responsible for the 
oversight of the CIV and can monitor 
and challenge the level of resources 
through that forum. 

 Tri-Borough Director of Treasury & 
Pensions is a member of the officer 
Investment Advisory Committee 
which gives the Fund influence over 
the work of the London CIV. 
 

3 2 

 
 
 

Low 
 
6 
 

City Treasurer March 2016 

15 OPERATIONAL: FUNDING 
Failure of an admitted or scheduled 
body leads to unpaid liabilities being 
left in the Fund to be met by others. 

 Transferee admission bodies required 
to have bonds in place at time of 
signing the admission agreement. 

 Regular monitoring of employers and 
follow up of expiring bonds. 
 

3 2 

Low 
 
6 
 

 
City Treasurer 

and Acting 
Director of HR 

 March 
2016 

 

16 

OPERATIONAL: FUNDING 
Ill health costs may exceed “budget” 
allocations made by the actuary 
resulting in higher than expected 
liabilities particularly for smaller 
employers. 

 Review “budgets” at each triennial 
valuation and challenge actuary as 
required. 

 Charge capital cost of ill health 
retirements to admitted bodies at the 
time of occurring. 

 Occupational health services 
provided by the Council and other 
large employers to address potential 
ill health issues early. 
 

3 2 

Low 
 

6 
 

City Treasurer 
and Acting 

Director of HR 
March 2016 

17 

OPERATIONAL: FUNDING 
Transfers out increase significantly as 
members transfer to DC funds to 
access cash through new pension 
freedoms. 
 

 Monitor numbers and values of 
transfers out being processed. 

 If required, commission transfer value 
report from Fund Actuary for 
application to Treasury for reduction 
in transfer values. 
 

2 3 

Low 
 

6 
 
 
 
 

City Treasurer 
and Acting 

Director of HR 

 March 
2016 

 

Page 32



 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

18 

OPERATIONAL: ADMINISTRATION 
Loss of funds through fraud or 
misappropriation leading to negative 
impact on reputation of the Fund as 
well as financial loss. 

 Third parties regulated by the FCA 
and separation of duties and 
independent reconciliation 
procedures in place. 

 Review of third party internal control 
reports. 

 Regular reconciliations of pension 
payments undertaken by Pensions 
Finance Team. 

 Periodic internal audits of Pensions 
Finance and HR teams. 
 

4 2 

Low 
 

8 
 

City Treasurer 
and Acting 

Director of HR 

 March 
2016 

19 

OPERATIONAL: ADMINISTRATION 
Failure of fund manager or other 
service provider without notice 
resulting in a period of time without the 
service being provided or an 
alternative needing to be quickly 
identified and put in place. 
 

 Contract monitoring in place with all 
providers. 

 Procurement team send alerts 
whenever credit scoring for any 
provider changes for follow up action. 
 

3 1 

Very Low 
 

3 
 

City Treasurer 
and Acting 

Director of HR 

 March 
2016 

 

20 

OPERATIONAL: ADMINISTRATION 
Failure of financial system leading to 
lump sum payments to scheme 
members and supplier payments not 
being made and Fund accounting not 
being possible. 

 Contract in place with BT to provide 
service enabling smooth processing 
of supplier payments 

 Process in place for Surrey CC to 
generate lump sum payments to 
members as they are due. 

 Officers undertaking additional testing 
and reconciliation work to verify 
accounting transactions 

2 2 

Very Low 

4 
 
 
 
 

City Treasurer March 2016 

21 

OPERATIONAL: ADMINISTRATION 
Failure of pension payroll system 
resulting in pensioners not being paid 
in a timely manner. 
 
 
 

 In the event of a pension payroll 
failure we would consider submitting 
the previous months BACS file to pay 
pensioners a second time if a file 
could not be recovered by the 
pension administrators and our 
software suppliers.  
 

1 5 

Very Low 
 

5 
 

Acting Director 
of HR 

March 2016 

 

22 

OPERATIONAL: ADMINISTRATION 
Failure to pay pension benefits 
accurately leading to under or over 
payments. 
 
 

 There are occasional circumstances 
where under or over payments are 
identified. Where under payments 
occur arrears are paid as soon as 
possible usually in the next monthly 
pension payment. Where an 
overpayment occurs, the member is 
contacted and the pension corrected 
in the next month. Repayment is 
requested and sometimes we collect 
this over a number of months. 
 

2 3 

Low 
 

6 

 
 

Acting Director 
of HR 

 March 
2016 

23 

OPERATIONAL: ADMINISTRATION 
Failure of pension administration 
system resulting in loss of records and 
incorrect pension benefits being paid or 
delays to payment. 
 

 Pension administration records are 
stored on the surrey servers they 
have a disaster recovery system in 
place and records should be restored 
within 24 hours of any issue, files are 
backed up daily. 
 

1 5 

Very Low 
 

5 

 
 

Acting Director 
of HR 

 March 
2016 

 

Page 33



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

24 

OPERATIONAL: ADMINISTRATION 
Administrators do not have sufficient 
staff or skills to manage the service 
leading to poor performance and 
complaints. 
 
 

 Surrey CC administers pensions for 
Surrey, East Sussex and is taking on 
our Triborough partners. They have a 
number of very experienced 
administrators two of whom tuped to 
them from LPFA with our contract.  
Where issues arise the Pensions 
Liaison Officer reviews directly with 
the Pensions Manager at Surrey. 
More detailed performance reports 
are being developed. 

2 3 

Low 
 

6 

 
 

Acting Director 
of HR 

March 2016 

25 

Operational: Administration 
BT unable to provide monthly or end of 
year interface files in a format suitable 
for Surrey CC to update service 
records and undertake day to day 
operations. Inaccuracies in service 
records held on the pensions 
administration system may impact on 
the triennial funding valuation at March 
2016 and notifications to starters and 
leavers.  

 Issue has been escalated by the 
Chief Executive for high level 
resolution with BT 

 Test files are currently with SCC 

 Actuary undertakes data cleansing on 
the service records and is confident 
this will mitigate the inaccuracies in 
service records 

4 3 

Medium 
 

12 

 

Acting Director 
of HR 

March 2016 

 

Page 34



 

Investment Strategy Statement: Appendix D 
 
Information on London CIV 
 
Stewardship Statement is attached – Other London CIV 
details are included in ISS main Statement 
 

 
The London Collective Investment Vehicle (CIV) was formed as a 

voluntary collaborative venture by the London Local Authorities in 2014 to 
invest the assets of London Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). 

The London CIV and its London Local Authority investors recognise the 
importance of being long term stewards of capital and in so doing 

supports the UK Stewardship Code, which it recognises as best practice.  
 

The London LGPS CIV Limited (“London CIV”) is fully authorised by the 
FCA as an Alternative Investment Fund Manager (AIFM) with permission 

to operate a UK based Authorised Contractual Scheme fund (ACS Fund). 
The London CIV in the management of its investments has appointed a 

number of external investment managers. We therefore see our role as 

setting the tone for the effective delivery of stewardship managers on our 
behalf and on behalf of our investing Funds. We are clear that we retain 

responsibility for this being done properly and fully in the interests of our 
own shareholders. 

 
This Statement sets out how the London CIV implements the seven 

principles of the Code.  
 

Principle 1 
Institutional investors should publicly disclose their policy on how 

they will discharge their stewardship responsibilities. 
 

The London CIV on behalf of its London Local Authority Shareholders 
recognises its position as an investor on their behalf with ultimate 

responsibility to members and beneficiaries and recognises that effective 
stewardship can help protect and enhance the long-term value of its 

investments to the ultimate benefit of all stakeholders in the LGPS.  

 
As we do not invest directly in companies, we hold our fund managers 

accountable for the delivery of stewardship on our behalf in terms of day-
to-day implementation of its stewardship activity. We require the 

appointed fund management teams to be responsible for holding to 

Page 35



 

account the management and boards of companies in which they invest. 

The London CIV believes that this approach is compatible with its 
stewardship responsibilities as it is the most effective and efficient manner 

in which it can promote and carry out stewardship activities in respect of 
its investments, and ensure the widest reach of these activities given the 

CIV’s investment arrangements. 
 

A key related area where stewardship is integrated into the wider process 
is in the selection and monitoring of external investment managers. When 

considering the appointment of external investment managers the 
consideration of Environmental Social and Governance (ESG) integration 

and stewardship activity of each investment manager is part of the 
selection process. 

The London CIV expects its equity investment managers to adhere to the 
principles within the UK Stewardship Code. This position is communicated 

to the Fund’s investment managers and forms the basis of the approach to 

monitoring the investment managers as outlined in this document. Whilst 
the Stewardship Code is primarily directed at UK equity investments, the 

CIV encourages its investment managers to apply the principles of the 
Code to overseas equity holdings where possible.  

 
The primary mechanisms for the application of effective stewardship for 

the CIV are exercise of voting rights and engagement with investee 
companies. The CIV expects its external equity investment managers that 

invest directly in companies, to pursue both these mechanisms. We 
receive quarterly reporting from managers which includes their 

stewardship and voting activities where appropriate. We seek consistently 
to ensure that these stewardship activities are carried out actively and 

effectively in the furtherance of good long-term investment returns.  
 

We expect all of the CIV’s equity managers to be signatories to the Code 

and have publicly disclosed their policy via their Statements on how they 
will discharge their stewardship responsibilities. We expect managers that 

invest in companies directly to discharge their responsibilities by:  
 

• having extensive dialogue with the company’s management 
throughout the year on a range of topics such as governance, 

financial performance and strategy; and  
• voting, either directly or via the services of voting agencies.  

 
 

Principle 2 
Institutional investors should have a robust policy on managing 

conflicts of interest in relation to stewardship which should be 
publicly disclosed. 

 

Page 36



 

Day-to-day implementation of the Fund’s stewardship activity has been 

delegated to external investment managers. The CIV expects its 
investment managers to document their approach to stewardship, which 

should include how they manage any conflicts of interest that arise to 
ensure that the interests of the CIV’s Investors are prioritised. The CIV 

will review annually the conflicts of interest policy of its managers and 
how any conflicts have been managed during the year. 

 
The London CIV has policies in place to manage conflicts of interest that 

may arise for the Board and its officers when making decisions on its 
behalf. The Conflicts of Interest policy is reviewed by the CIV board on a 

regular basis. A Conflicts of Interest Register is maintained.  
 

Shareholders of the CIV attending the Pensions Sectoral Joint Committee 
are required to declare any conflicts of interest at the start of any 

meeting. 

 
 

 
 

 
Principle 3 

Institutional investors should monitor their investee companies. 
 

We recognise that active and ongoing monitoring of companies is the 
foundation of good stewardship, reminding companies in which we invest 

that they have obligations to their shareholders to deliver returns over the 
appropriate long-term investment timeframe and, consistent with this, to 

manage any related environmental and social risks responsibly. 
 

The CIV requires its external investment managers to monitor investee 

companies. Issues to be monitored are likely to vary, however typically 
these might include a company’s corporate strategy, financial 

performance, risk (including those from environmental and social factors), 
capital structure, leadership team and corporate governance. The CIV 

encourages its investment managers to satisfy themselves that investee 
companies adhere to the spirit of the UK Corporate Governance Code.  

 
The CIV reviews investment managers in this area as part of their regular 

meetings. For equity investment managers this includes consideration of:  
 

• who has overall responsibility for ESG risk analysis and integration;  
• resources and experience of the team;  

• at what stages of the process ESG risks are considered;  
• exposures to environmental, social or governance risk within the 

portfolio; and  

Page 37



 

• the investment manager’s willingness to become an insider and, if 

so, whether the manager has a policy setting out the mechanisms 
through which this is done.  

 
Principle 4 

Institutional investors should establish clear guidelines on when 
and how they will escalate their stewardship activities. 

 
The CIV recognises that constructive engagement with company 

management can help protect and enhance shareholder value. Typically, 
the CIV expects its investment managers to intervene with investee 

companies when they view that there are material risks or issues that are 
not currently being adequately addressed.  

 
The CIV reviews investment managers in this area as part of their regular 

meeting. For equity investment managers that invest directly in 

Companies, this includes consideration of:  
 

• whether voting activity has led to any changes in company practice;  
• whether the investment manager’s policy specifies when and how 

they will escalate engagement activities;  
• overall engagement statistics (volume and areas of focus);  

• example of most intensive engagement activity discussed as part of 
the manager’s annual review meeting; and  

• the estimated performance impact of engagement on the strategy 
in question.  

 
Given the range of fund managers and Fund investments, the CIV carries 

out its monitoring at the manager level to identify:  
 

• trends to ensure progress is being made in stewardship activities;  

• specific managers where progress or the rate of progress is not 
adequate; and  

• appropriate specific actions necessary.  
 

Principle 5 
Institutional investors should be willing to act collectively with 

other investors where appropriate. 
 

As day-to-day management of the Fund’s assets has been delegated to 
external investment managers, the CIV expects its investment managers 

to get involved in collective engagement where this is an efficient means 
to protect and enhance long-term shareholder value. 

 
In addition the London CIV will work collectively with other investors 

including other LGPS Asset pools and the Local Authority Pension Fund 

Forum (LAPFF) to enhance the impact of their engagement activities. 

Page 38



 

Principle 6 

Institutional investors should have a clear policy on voting and 
disclosure of voting activity. 

 
The CIV has delegated its voting rights to the Fund’s investment 

managers and requires them to vote, except where it is impractical to do 
so. The CIV also monitors the voting alerts of the LAPFF and where these 

are issued, requires the investment managers to take account of these 
alerts as far as practical to do so. Where the investment manager does 

not vote in line with the LAPFF voting alerts, the CIV will require detailed 
justification for non compliance. 

 
The CIV reviews and monitors the voting policies and activities of its 

investment managers, this includes consideration of:  
 

• the manager’s voting policy and, what areas are covered;  

• the level of voting activity  
• whether the investment manager typically informs companies of 

their rationale when voting against or abstaining (and whether this is 
typically in advance of the vote or not);  

• if securities lending takes place within a pooled fund for the 
strategy, whether the stock is recalled for all key votes for all stocks 

held in the portfolio; and  
• whether a third party proxy voting service provider is used and, if 

so, how.  
 

Principle 7 
Institutional investors should report periodically on their 

stewardship and voting activities. 
 

The London CIV encourages transparency from its investment managers 

and expects its managers to report publicly on their voting in an 
appropriate manner. In addition the London CIV receives reviews and 

monitors quarterly the voting and stewardship engagement activities of its 
investment managers. 

The CIV reports quarterly to its investors and will include information on 
voting and engagement activities from investment managers where 

appropriate including updates as required on updated stewardship and 
voting policies of managers. The CIV also requires its managers to provide 

it with annual assurances on internal controls and compliance through 
recognised framework such as the AAF01/06 or equivalent.  

 
This statement will be reviewed regularly and updated as 

necessary. 
.  
 
 
 

Page 39



 

Appendix 2 - Investment Regulations and Investment Strategy 
Statement  
 
 

 

Committee Report 
 
 

Decision Maker: 
 

PENSION FUND COMMITTEE 

Date: 
 

15 November 2016 

Classification: 
 

Public 

Title: 
 

Investment Regulations and Investment 
Strategy Statement 
 

Wards Affected: 
 

All 

Policy Context: 
 

Effective control over Council Activities  

Financial Summary:  
 

There are no financial implications arising from 
this report. 
 

Report of: 
 

Steven Mair 
City Treasurer 
 

smair@westminster.gov.uk 
020 7641 2904 

 

4 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.6 The Government has issued guidance on the preparation of Investment 

Strategy Statements (ISS) as required under the soon to be released 
revised investment regulations.  This note summarises the anticipated 
investment regulations and the finalised guidance. 

 
1.7 The investment environment under the new regulations will be one of 

increased freedom but with more onerous justification of investment 
policy together with greater requirements to consult with interested 
parties and to report on the application of policy.  There will also be 
greater Government powers of intervention, mainly but not exclusively, 
aimed at pooling. 

 
1.8 It is not anticipated that the Committee will have to alter its current 

investment strategy.  It may well have to consider the extent of 
diversification and the adequacy of risk management, which was 
already anticipated post the actuarial review. 

Page 40

mailto:jonathanhunt@westminster.gov.uk


 

 
1.9 The Committee will be required to review its policy on ethical, social and 

corporate governance issues and in particular to discuss oversight of 
voting with the London CIV. 

5 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.3 The Committee is invited: 

 
a. To note that a draft Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) prepared in 

accordance with the revised investment regulations and guidance will 
be presented to the March 2017 Committee meeting. 

 
b. To discuss the requirement for greater detail on environmental, social 

and corporate governance (voting) matters including greater 
consultation with interested parties, including the Pension Board, 
which will have to be reflected in the ISS. 

 
 

6 PROPOSALS AND ISSUES 
 
3.1 The Government issued revised investment regulations in September 

2016, to have effect from 1st November 2016.  The centre piece of the 
regulations was the replacement of the Statement of Investment 
Principles (SIP) with a requirement to prepare and operate in 
accordance with an ISS.  Guidance has recently been issued on the 
preparation of an ISS.  Each scheme is required to have an ISS by 1st 
April 2017 and a draft will be presented to the 21st March 2017 meeting 
of the Committee. 
 

Overview of the Investment Regulations 
 
3.2  The revised investment regulations are quite short, running to only 

seven pages.  The key deletion is the old schedule 1 that specified 

limits on the allocation to particular types of assets.  The main sections 

in the investment Regulation are: 

a) Requirement to keep the assets of the pension fund separate from 

those of the administering authority, to collect contributions and 

income and to operate separate bank accounts for the fund. 

b) No borrowing is permitted except temporary loans (90 days max) to 

allow the payment of pensions. 

c) An authority must, after taking proper advice, formulate an 

investment strategy which must be in accordance with guidance 

issued by the Secretary of State.  The ISS must include: 

 a requirement to invest fund money in a wide variety of 
investments;  

Page 41



 

 the authority’s assessment of the suitability of particular 
investments and types of investments;  

 the authority’s approach to risk, including the ways in which risks 
are to be measured and managed;  

 the authority’s approach to pooling investments, including the use 
of collective investment vehicles and shared services;  

  the authority’s policy on how social, environmental or corporate 
governance considerations are taken into account in the selection, 
non-selection, retention and realisation of investments;   

 the authority’s policy on the exercise of the rights (including voting 
rights) attaching to investments; 

 the maximum percentage of the total value of all investments of 
fund money that it will invest in particular investments or classes of 
investment (a scheme specific replacement of the old schedule 1);   

 The authority must consult such persons as it considers 
appropriate as to the contents of its investment strategy; and   

 The ISS must be reviewed at least every three years and 
investments must be made in accordance with the ISS. 
 

These requirements are discussed below (paragraph 3.8).  The 

requirements to take ‘proper advice’ and to invest in a wide variety of 

investments may potentially lead to challenge and debate with the 

investment advisor.   

d) The Government can give directions to the administering authority if 

it is satisfied that the authority is not having regard to the ISS 

guidance.  Directions may include: 

 A requirement to make changes to the ISS; 

 How to invest particular assets; and  

 Transfer of the investment functions to the Government or 

nominated person. 

The guidance (paragraph 3.6 below) discussed the circumstances 

when the powers of direction will be used.  The regulations require 

the Government to consult with the administering authority in 

advance of any direction and to consider evidence as to how the fund 

is being managed.  

e) The authority must take proper advice before making investment 

manager appointments. This presumably includes transferring assets 

to the London CIV. 

4.3 The ISS requires additional details compared with the SIP (in particular 

on risk management, pooling, ESG and voting), which are discussed 

Page 42



 

below.  As mentioned above, a draft ISS reflecting the current position 

of the fund will be prepared for the 21 March 2017 meeting. 

4.4 The application of the Government’s powers of direction is also 

discussed in the guidance.  Such are the scope of the powers that it is 

anticipated that authorities who could not address the Government’s 

concerns during the consultation period will take the required action in 

advance of a direction being issued. 

ISS Guidance 

 

4.5 The guidance is designed to assist in preparing the ISS.  As highlighted 
above the ISS must be in accordance with the guidance.  The guidance 
is summarised below. 

 
Powers of Direction 

4.6 The guidance refers to the new freedoms for administering authorities 
(no schedule 1 limitations) and the ISS being a ‘prudential framework’ 
and the powers of direction as a safeguard to ensure that this less 
prescriptive approach is used appropriately and in the best long term 
interests of scheme beneficiaries and taxpayers.  The guidance refers to 
prior consultation and the general law principle to make investment 
decisions in the best long term interest of beneficiaries and tax payers.   

 
4.7 The consultation previously indicated that powers of intervention were 

mainly aimed at authorities that did not participate in pooling.  The 
guidance does not state this, but it presumably remains the main 
purpose.  The Committee will need to consider the meaning of best long 
term interest, which presumably relates to solvency, cost and taking 
decisions based on long term returns.  One view point is that a 
thoughtful Committee should not be concerned with the use of the 
powers.  An alternative viewpoint is that future Governments may take a 
different (and issue specific) view of best long term interest.  There is no 
way to prejudge how these powers will be applied by the current and 
future Governments.  In preparing the ISS, the Committee will need to 
be diligent in addressing each of the bullet points in 3.2(c). 

 
Contents of ISS 

4.8 The guidance summarises the requirements when preparing an ISS as 
follows: 

 Must take proper advice; 

 Must set out clearly the balance between different types of 
investments; 

 Must identify the risks associated with their overall investment 
strategy;  

 Must periodically review their policy to mitigate against any such 
risks; 

Page 43



 

 Should ensure that their policy on asset allocation is compatible with 
achieving their locally determined solvency target; 

 Must periodically review the suitability of their investment portfolio to 
ensure that returns, risk and volatility are all appropriately managed 
and are consistent with their overall investment strategy; 

 Should clearly state their appetite for risk; 

 Should be aware of the risks that may impact on their overall funding 
and investment strategies; 

 Should take measures to counter those risks; 

 Should periodically review the assumptions on which their investment 
strategy is based; and 

 Should formulate contingency plans to limit the impact of risks that 
might materialise. 

 
4.9 None of the above should cause any concern to the Committee.  If not 

already explicitly stated in the SIP or elsewhere (e.g. funding strategy 
statement) it will be implicit in the current strategy and the actions taken 
by the Committee.  Addressing these questions is good practice. 

 
Pooling 

4.10 The regulations require that each Fund must commit to a [singular] pool 
that meets the pooling criteria issued last year, or otherwise approved.  
Particular requirements within the guidance are: 

 To notify the Scheme Advisory Board and the Secretary of State of 
any changes [in pool governance structures] which result in failure to 
meet the criteria; 

 Set out the proportion of assets that will be invested through pooling; 

 Set out the structure and governance arrangements of the pool and 
the mechanisms by which the authority can hold the pool to account; 

 Set out the services that will be shared or jointly procured; 

 Provide a summary of assets that the authority has determined are 
not suitable for investing through the pool along with its rationale for 
doing so, and how this demonstrates value for money; 

 Regularly review any assets, and no less than every 3 years, that the 
authority has previously determined should be held outside of the 
pool, ensuring this continues to demonstrate value for money; and 

 Submit an annual report on the progress of asset transfers to the 
Scheme Advisory Board. 

 
4.11 In complying with aspects of these regulations e.g. pool governance 

arrangements, it is expected that the London CIV will prepare 
standardised content.  The references to assets to be pooled or 
excluded should cause no concern if the Committee remains confortable 
with the London CIV as the platform for fund manager appointments.  
The reference to pooling decisions being based on ‘value for money’ 
considerations may or may not imply that it is purely the cost of 

Page 44



 

managing assets that should be considered and not potential returns.  
Unless the Committee has issues with pooling, the exact definition of 
‘value for money’ has no practical implications.   

 
Social, Environmental or Corporate Governance Considerations 

4.12 The first part of the guidance seeks to prevent ‘boycotts, disinvestment 
and sanctions against foreign nations and the UK defence industries’ 
other than Government sanctions by stating the legal basis on which 
investment decisions must be made.  These include: 

 Taking proper advice and act prudently; 

 Prudently being defined as a duty to discharge statutory 
responsibilities with care, skill, prudence and diligence; 

 To act in accordance with ordinary public law principles, in particular, 
the ordinary public law of reasonableness; 

 Schemes should consider any factors that are financially material to 
the performance of their investments, including social, environmental 
and corporate governance factors over the long term.  

 
4.13 None of the above appears to be different from the basis on which the 

Committee currently operates and thus have no immediate 
consequences. 
 

4.14 The guidance continues “Although schemes should make the pursuit of 
a financial return their predominant concern, they may also take purely 
non-financial considerations into account provided that doing so would 
not involve significant risk of financial detriment to the scheme and 
where they have good reason to think that scheme members would 
support their decision.”  The use of non-financial considerations has to 
be quantified and explained in the ISS. 

 
4.15 The above wording although consistent with the Committee’s current 

approach is likely to be seen as an invitation to scheme members to 
express views on social and environmental aspects of investment 
policy. This is amplified in a discussion on social investments (where the 
social impact may be in addition or part substitution to the financial 
return) where it is stated that “these investments will also be compatible 
with the prudent approach providing administering authorities have good 
reason to think scheme members share the concern for social impact, 
and there is no risk of significant financial detriment to the fund.” When 
presented with ‘social investments’ the Committee will have to consider 
whether any adverse financial consequences are ‘significant’ and 
balances by social benefits. 

 
4.16 The guidance requires that when setting policy on social, environmental 

and corporate governance matters, the Committee should explain the 
extent to which the views of their local pension board and other 
interested parties who they consider may have an interest will be taken 
into account when making an investment decision based on non-
financial factors. Although the Committee is at liberty to not have a 

Page 45



 

process for seeking views of interested parties, they should be wary of 
challenge and the Government’s powers to amend the ISS.  It is 
suggested that the policy of these issues is reconsidered from the 
standpoint of seeking to consult with the Pensions Board. 

 
The Exercise of Voting Rights 

4.17 The final section of the guidance is concerned with ensuring the highest 
standards of corporate governance in the companies in which funds 
invest.  Good governance is seen as enhancing shareholder value.  
Stewardship activities include monitoring and engaging with companies 
with the aim of exerting a positive influence on companies to promote 
strong governance, manage risk, increase accountability and drive 
improvements in the management of environmental, social and 
corporate governance issues. 
 

4.18 The Committee’s current policy is that corporate governance activity, 
including voting, is an essential part of the decision to buy and hold 
investments and should be undertaken by the appointed investment 
managers.  The guidance ‘encourages’ (not the same as requires?) 
Funds’ to consider the best way to engage with companies either 
directly, in partnership with other investors or through their investment 
managers, and explain their policy on stewardship with reference to the 
Stewardship Code. The new requirement is that administering 
authorities should become Signatories to the Stewardship Code and 
state how they implement the seven principles and guidance of the 
Code, which apply on a “comply or explain” basis. A summary of the 
Stewardship Code is attached (Appendix 1). 

 
4.19 The guidance requires a discussion within the ISS on the exercise of 

voting rights, including holding investment managers to account on 
voting records and stewardship in general. There is a suggestion on 
appointing an independent proxy voting agent to exercise their proxy 
voting and monitor the voting activity of the managers.  Finally, a 
requirement to publish a report of voting activity as part of the pension 
fund annual report. 
 

4.20 The current social, environmental and ethical policy as set out in the SIP 
is: 

“The Fund recognises that the neglect of corporate governance and 
corporate social responsibility may lead to poor or reduced shareholder 
returns.  The Committee has considered how the Fund may best 
implement a corporate social responsibility policy, given the current 
resources available to the Fund.  Accordingly, the Committee has 
delegated social, environmental and ethical policy to the investment 
managers. The Committee believes this is the most efficient approach 
whilst ensuring the implementation of policy by each manager is 
consistent with current best practice and there is appropriate disclosure 
and reporting of actions taken. To that extent, the Committee maintains 

Page 46



 

a policy of non-interference with the day-to-day decision making of the 
investment managers.” 
 

4.21 The Committee went to considerable effort to establish a Stewardship 
Policy setting out the basis on which fund managers were expected to 
vote.  In particular the policy identified common stewardship concerns 
(e.g. executive remuneration) and informed fund managers the issues 
that they should consider when voting.  The policy was approved by the 
Committee in November 2014 and was subsequently circulated to fund 
managers.  It includes a promise to publish annually a statement on 
these stewardship activities undertaken by the Committee.  If the 
Committee follows through on the policy and signs up to the UK 
Stewardship Code itself, then it would be fully compliant with the 
guidance.  
 

4.22 It is likely that the Committee’s current approach of delegation to fund 
managers remains valid but will have to be explained.  Also that the 
fund managers will be required to report on voting activity, in particular 
failures to vote.  The requirement to comment on voting in the annual 
report is not onerous.  However, it can be expected that there will be 
greater interest in voting.   
 

4.23 All this is either made more complicated or potentially simplified by the 
London CIV.  With the CIV appointing fund managers they will be 
expected to exercise the oversight discussed above.  It will not be 
possible within pooled funds for the Committee to operate its own voting 
policy.  Rather pressure will be brought on the London CIV if their policy 
is deemed inadequate. 

 
5 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE PENSION FUND COMMITTEE 

 
4.4 Looking from a high level the new investment regulations and guidance 

do provide greater freedom to set strategy.  However,  the regulations 
and guidance’ requires that strategy be justified based as in the best 
long term interest of beneficiaries and tax payers and the management 
of risk explained.  This should be seen as best practice, although with 
an unwelcome degree of Government oversight. 

 
4.5 The requirements for ethical, social and corporate governance will 

require a review of the Committee’s current approach to these issues, in 
particular a discussion with the London CIV in connection with the 
Stewardship Code, increased reporting and greater effort to take into 
account the views of the Pension Board and Scheme Members.  These 
areas will be addressed in drafting the ISS in the next few months. 

 
4.6 Overall, the regulations and guidance offer the opportunity to review 

current investment policy and ensure that justification is adequately 
documented. 

 

  

Page 47



 

 

 
If you have any questions about this report, or wish to inspect one of 

the background papers, please contact the report author:  
 

George Bruce pensionfund@westminster.gov.uk  or 020 7641 6925 
 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS: None 
 
APPENDICES:  

 
Appendix 1 – Summary of UK Stewardship Code 

 
UK Stewardship Code Summary 

 
The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) published the UK Stewardship Code (the 
Code) in July 2010. The Code is designed to lay out the responsibilities of 
institutional investors as shareholders and provide guidance as to how those 
responsibilities might be met. Pension fund trustees and other investors are ‘strongly 
encouraged’ to ‘report if and how they have complied with the Code’ 
 
The Stewardship Code consists of seven key Principles: 
 
Principle 1: Institutional investors should publicly disclose their policy on how they will 
discharge their stewardship responsibilities. 
 
Principle 2: Institutional investors should have a robust policy on managing conflicts 
of interest in relation to stewardship and this policy should be publicly disclosed.  
 
Principle 3: Institutional investors should monitor their investee companies. 
 
Principle 4: Institutional investors should establish clear guidelines on when and how 
they will escalate their activities as a method of protecting and enhancing 
shareholder value. 
 
Principle 5: Institutional investors should be willing to act collectively with other 
investors where appropriate. 
 
Principle 6: Institutional investors should have a clear policy on voting and disclosure 
of voting activity. 
 
Principle 7: Institutional investors should report periodically on their stewardship and 
voting activities. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 48

mailto:pensionfund@westminster.gov.uk


 

 

 

Pension Board 
  
 

Date: 9 May 2017 
 

Classification: General Release  
 

Title: 
 

Risk Register Review – Focusing on Risk 25 

Report of: 
 
 
Wards Involved: 
 

Steven Mair 
City Treasurer 
 
All 

Policy Context: 
 

Effective Control over Council Activities 

Financial Summary:  There are financial implications on the Pension 
Fund if administrative functions are not delivered 
efficiently as liabilities could be over or under 
stated 
 

 
1. Executive Summary 

1.1 At the last Pension Board meeting on the 6th March the Board requested a full 

review of Risk 25.  

 

1.2 Risk 25 is an Operational Administration Risk and states “BT unable to provide 

monthly or end of year interface files in a format suitable for Surrey CC to update 

service records and undertake day to day operations. Inaccuracies in service 

records held on the pensions administration system may impact on the triennial 

funding valuation at March 2016 and notifications to starters and leavers.” 

 

1.3 The Risk Register sets out three mitigating factors: 

1.3.1 Issue has been escalated by the Chief Executive for high level resolution with 

BT; 

1.3.2 Test files are currently with SSC; 

1.3.3 Actuary undertakes data cleansing on the service records and is confident this 

will mitigate the inaccuracies in service records. 

1.4 The Risk Register sets this out as a Medium Risk with a rating level of 12. 

 

 

Page 49

Agenda Item 6



1.5 This report focuses on the work that is in place to rectify the BT to Surrey 

Interface and set out end to end monitoring arrangements.  

 

2. Key Matters for the Board 

2.1 The Board note the contents of this paper and are invited to comment on the 

proposed process being followed to rectify the interface, service record data, and 

how future end to end monitoring will take place. 

 

2.2 The Board Members note that a full analysis of this issue will also be undertaken 

as part of a wider review of Administration processes, issues, data, and end to 

end Monitoring at their next meeting on the 22nd June. 

2.3 That the Board review the risk register attached and choose a further area to 

investigate at the next meeting. 

3. Background 

3.1 As was reported at the Last Pension Board and Joint Pension Board/ Pension 

Committee meetings in March there are significant questions being raised on the 

end to end Administration processes, it’s monitoring and associated 

performance monitoring. Presently monitoring is done at different stages of the 

process, but because of “data gaps”, it has not been possible to bring it together 

as a complete end to end process.  

3.2 A key constituent of the Risk is the fact that there is still no interface working 

between BT and Surrey.  However, this is only part of the overall process as 

there are also linkages between other HR/Payroll providers and Surrey.  

3.3 In addition, as described at the Joint Pension Committee Pension Board Meeting 

on the 23rd April, there have been issues being raised with by the Union, the 

HCA, and other Admitted and Scheduled Bodies that require addressing. 

3.4 Only when there is a full understanding, documentation, and monitoring of the 

end to end process for the Council and all Admitted and Scheduled Bodies will 

the perceived confidence of Stakeholders improve.  

3.5 This Report sets out what is being undertaken, and the associated timescales, in 

order to achieve a working interface and more robust end to end process 

monitoring. 

4. Focus Area: Risk Register Scoring Process 

4.1 Officers were tasked with ensuring that they addressed the issues being 

encountered by Pension Fund customers, and in particular had a plan to show 

what needed to be delivered, by whom and by when to give stakeholders 

Page 50



confidence of delivery at the next Pensions Committee on the 22nd June and the 

Pension Fund Annual General Meeting in September. 

4.2 A plan has been presented by the Director of People Services and the Tri-

Borough Director of Pensions and Treasury to the Chairman of the Pension Fund 

to ensure that: 

4.2.1 The BT to Surrey Interface is fully operational as quickly as possible; 

4.2.2 That all known administrative issues have been understood and rectified; 

4.2.3 That there is a process in place for end to end monitoring of the process to 

ensure data quality is of the correct standard and items are processed in a 

timely manner.  

4.3 One of the Key issues has been the transfer of data (Starters/Leavers/Changes) 

from the Councils payroll provider BT to Surrey.  There are two interfaces that 

relate to: 

4.3.1 The year-end interface has been seen before by Surrey and is being updated 

for comments that have been fed back. 

4.3.2 The Joiners interface that has not yet been seen by Surrey 

4.4 Even when these interfaces are live there are still known issues that will not be 

included within them.  These will be “fixed” over the longer term. In the meantime 

the Director of People Services has arranged for his team to submit the necessary 

paperwork to Surrey for all changes.  While this is not a sustainable, long term 

solution and does put additional pressure on the in house team, it is the most 

pragmatic approach until BT can deliver this work. 

4.5 Both BT Interfaces to Surrey were expected to be operational by the 31st March 

in the initial plan.  However, reviews of the underlying data carried out in the final 

week of March highlighted data issues that required rectification before the 

interfaces could go live.  Council HR staff have travelled to the North East to work 

with BT to help rectify these issues in April. It is expected that this will have 

caused a 5 week delay in the initial timetable, and now the data is expected to be 

ready for use by Friday 5th May although there is a risk with this date.  There is a 

meeting on the 2nd May to confirm this. After the first Interface is run, interfaces 

will then run on a monthly basis.   

4.6 Once the first interface runs however, the following process will be put in place to 

ensure all parties are happy as there needs to be confirmation when the initial 

interface runs that the data contained is correct. 

Page 51



4.6.1 The Council will ask Surrey once the interface has been run if they are happy 

with the data and formats to close off the “transaction”. 

4.6.2 If Surrey are not happy with the outputs, the Council will endeavour to get 

Surrey and BT into a room together the following week to run through the 

issues, and set out a quick timescale for when the interface will be fit for 

purpose and operational, and monitor progress against the revised plan. 

4.7 Once live, these interfaces will resolve a number of the problems being 

experienced at the moment. 

4.8 To get more meaningful end to end data reported to the Pensions Committee the 

summary data on the BT interface will be converted into a report.  This report will 

show the “inputs” being transferred from BT to Surrey and can be added to the  

“outputs listing” that is already being supplied by Surrey: 

4.8.1 However, this only covers the BT to Surrey data.  There are other Payroll/HR 

providers where data will also have to be collected.  This is a longer term 

project for which a separate project plan will be required 

4.9 This way, on a monthly basis the administering authority will have: 

4.9.1 Inputs from BT (the largest HR/Payroll Provider); 

4.9.2 In the longer term inputs from all other HR/Payroll Providers; 

4.9.3 Outputs from Surrey – as we have now. Additionally WCC have requested to 

receive monthly, rather than quarterly, data reports from Surrey. There is the 

action to add volumetric data to those Surrey lines that presently do not 

contain this information 

4.10 Although there should be monitoring of the inputs from all Payroll/HR suppliers, 

presently this is not the case.  When this is set up, which will be onerous to begin 

with, it will save time in the long run as it will ensure the data supplied is accurate 

and timely.  

4.11 At the Pensions Committee on the 21st March, “30 Issues” were highlighted by 

the Union and required to be resolved before the next Pension Committee 

Meeting.  In addition, a further 15 issues have also been identified in 

conversations with the HCA. People Services have asked for details of these 

incidents and they are attached in the log.  It is clear the previous estimates were 

over exaggerated. 

4.12 At the moment there is a Risk and Issues log presented to the Committee at 

every meeting. There is the requirement to add a detailed Pensions 

Administration Issues log (detailed) to the Pension Fund Report.  All known 

Page 52



issues require consolidation into a common log for monitoring, resolution and 

underlying fault identification.  

4.13 Underlying this is the need for all parties to communicate clearly to each other 

and look at the delivery of the Service from an end-users point of view.  The end-

user and the Committee are not interested who resolves the problem, only that 

the problem is resolved.  This requires clear communications up and down the 

process chain. 

4.14 There has been an on-going issue with BT in respect of the Under and 

Overpayments of Pension (and other) deductions.   A project has been run 

through the Managed Service Programme (MSP) team to quantify these and 

make the appropriate corrections.  These corrections would be actioned by 

running a supplemental payroll.  The MSP team are required to communicate the 

timetable for this supplemental payroll to be run and this needs to be factored into 

Pensions Administration plans, and is communicated properly to customers 

  
5. Expected Outcomes 

5.1 From the work set out in Section 4 the Council, as the Administering Authority, 

will be in the position where: 

5.1.1 It is confident of the data it holds; 

5.1.2 It has metrics of inputs and outputs to report to the Pensions Committee; 

5.1.3 It has a consolidate list of Pensions Admin issues 

5.1.4 It will have sorted out the Union Issues and understood the root causes as 

well as the HCA issues. 

5.1.5 It will have tighter end to end control over the process and be able to 

understand where issues are occurring and where to correct them 

If you have any queries about this report  please contact the author:   

Pete Carpenter 

Tri Borough Director of Pensions and Treasury 

Email: pcarpenter@westminster.gov.uk  

Telephone: 020 7641 2832 

 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS:   

HR Monitoring Reports to Pension Board and Pensions Committee 

Page 53



APPENDICES 
 
The following table sets out the timetable and responsible officers for the delivery of 
tasks 
LW – Lee Witham 
JM – Jo Meagher 
PC – Pete Carpenter 
 

Week 
ending 

Interface 
(LW/JM) 

Report (LW/JM) Union 30 Issues 
(LW /JM/ PC) 

Admin Issues 
Log (LW/JM) 

Under/ 
Overpayments 

(PC) 

31/3 BT Interface 
Should Be Run 

by 31/3 – 
rescheduled 

 LW to get list of 
30 Issues from 

Chris Smith 

 Correction 
payroll is 
presently 

expected to run 
the end of April. 
This still needs 

confirming. 

7/4    Have Councils 
listing – waiting 
for Union listing 

 

14/4 Ask Surrey if All 
Data is Correct – 
and list (if any) 

Issues to resolve 
– rescheduled 

Construct Inputs 
data file from BT 
Interface data to 

add to Surrey 
Data. – 

rescheduled 

List will be 
received from 
Union on the 

19/4 

Draft Complete 
listing live 

Pensions Admin 
Issues (At 

individual level) 

 

21/4 Have Face to 
Face Meeting -  

Surrey and BT to 
sort out any 

further Issues 
with timescales 
– rescheduled 

 Set up meetings 
with BT and 

Surrey to resolve 
Issues (Face to 
Face Meetings 

  

28/4  Ensure Volumes 
data for all items 

is added to 
Surrey Data – 
rescheduled 

   

5/5  Ensure Surrey 
run Monthly 

Report of Inputs 
Outputs – 

rescheduled 

 List available for 
Review and add 
to Finance Issues 

log 

Confirm 
corrections have 

worked and 
there are no 

further Under 
and Over 

payment issues 

12/5 Assume 
Interface runs at 

the 16th May 

    

Page 54



19/5 Ask Surrey if All 
Data is Correct – 
and list (if any) 

Issues to resolve 

Construct Inputs 
data file from BT 
Interface data to 

add to Surrey 
Data. 

Issues Resolved   

26/5 Have Face to 
Face Meeting -  

Surrey and BT to 
sort out any 

further Issues 
with timescales 

    

2/6 Next Interface 
Run 

Ensure Volumes 
data for all items 

is added to 
Surrey Data  

 List available for 
Review and add 
to Finance Issues 

log 

 

9/6      

16/6  Pursue data 
availability from 
other providers 
as well as BT – 

Come to view on 
process 

   

23/6 Next Ctte Next Ctte Next Ctte Next Ctte Next Ctte 

30/6      

7/7 Next Interface 
Run 

Ensure Surrey 
run Monthly 

Report of Inputs 
Outputs 

 Review existing 
list and add to 
Finance Issues 

log  

 

14/7      

21/7      

28/7      

4/8 Next Interface 
Run 

Ensure Surrey 
run Monthly 

Report of Inputs 
Outputs 

 Review existing 
list and add to 
Finance Issues 

log 

 

11/8      

18/8      

25/8      

1/9      

8/9 Next Interface 
Run 

Ensure Surrey 
run Monthly 

Report of Inputs 
Outputs 

 Review existing 
list and add to 
Finance Issues 

log 

 

15/9 Possible AGM 
Date 

Possible AGM 
Date 

Possible AGM 
Date 

Possible AGM 
Date 

Possible AGM 
Date 

 

 
 
 

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

HR Administration Issue Log

Name of individual Contact Information

Unison

Unison/Individual

Unison

Unison

Page 57



Incident Subject Date of query

Non Reciept of Pension and Lump Sum 31st March2017

Non Reciept of Pension and Lump Sum 19th April 2017

Non receipt of ABS 6th April 2017

Querying Care pay and ABS 21st April 2017

Page 58



Date of first response Date of estimated resolution Date of resolution

31st March 2017 31st March 2017 31st March 2017

19th April 2017 To be assessed

6th April 2017 To be assessed

21st April 2017 To be assessed

Page 59



Responsible Responsible Contract

Kim Edwards

Kim Edwards

Sarah Hay

Sarah Hay

Page 60



Comments

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2: Pension Fund Risk Register, March 2017 
 
 
Changes to the risk register since previous quarter 
 
 

Type Ref Risk Rationale 

    

 
  

P
age 63



Pension Fund risk register, March 2017 
 

   Residual 
risk score 

   

Ref Risk Mitigating Actions 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

Im
p

a
c
t 

£
’s

 

Im
p

a
c
t 

N
o

’s
 

Risk 
Rating 

Officer 
responsible 

Next 
Review 

Date 

1 

STRATEGIC: INVESTMENT 
That the combination of assets in 
the investment portfolio fails to 
fund the liabilities in the long term.  

 Investment strategy in place and 
reviewed periodically. 

 Performance is measured against a 
liability based benchmark. 

 Fund performance is reviewed 
quarterly. 

2 3  

Low 
 
6 
 
 

City Treasurer 
June 
2017 

2 

STRATEGIC: INVESTMENT 
Fund managers fail to achieve the 
returns agreed in their 
management agreements. 

 Independent monitoring of fund 
manager performance by custodian 
against targets. 

 Investment adviser retained to keep 
watching brief. 

 Fund manager performance is 
reviewed quarterly. 

3 3  

Low 
 
9 
 
 

City Treasurer 
June 
2017 

3 

STRATEGIC: INVESTMENT 
Failure of custodian or 
counterparty. 

 At time of appointment, ensure 
assets are separately registered and 
segregated by owner. 

 Review of internal control reports on 
an annual basis. 

 Credit rating kept under review. 

2 3  

Low 
 
6 
 

City Treasurer 
June 
2017 

  

P
age 64



   Residual 
risk score 

   

Ref Risk Mitigating Actions 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

Im
p

a
c
t 

£
’s

 

Im
p

a
c
t 

N
o

’s
 

Risk 
Rating 

Officer 
responsible 

Next 
Review 

Date 

4 STRATEGIC: FUNDING 
The level of inflation and interest 
rates assumed in the valuation 
may be inaccurate leading to 
higher than expected liabilities. 

 Review at each triennial valuation 
and challenge actuary as required. 

 Growth assets and inflation linked 
assets in the portfolio should rise as 
inflation rises. 
 

4 3  

Medium 
 

12 
 
 

 
 
 

City Treasurer 

June 
2017 

5 

STRATEGIC: FUNDING 
There is insufficient cash available 
in the Fund to meet pension 
payments leading to investment 
assets being sold at sub-optimal 
prices to meet pension payments. 
 

 Cashflow forecast maintained and 
monitored. 

 Cashflow position reported to sub-
committee quarterly. 

 Cashflow requirement is a factor in 
current investment strategy review. 

2 1  

Very Low 
 
2 
 

City Treasurer 
June 
2017 

6 

STRATEGIC: FUNDING 
Scheme members live longer than 
expected leading to higher than 
expected liabilities. 
 
 

 Review at each triennial valuation 
and challenge actuary as required. 

 
4 2  

Low 
 
8 
 
 

City Treasurer 
June 
2017 

  

P
age 65



   Residual 
risk score 

   

Ref Risk Mitigating Actions 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

Im
p

a
c
t 

Risk Rating Officer 
responsible 

Next 
Review 

Date 

7 

STRATEGIC: FUNDING 
Scheme matures more quickly 
than expected due to public sector 
spending cuts, resulting in 
contributions reducing and pension 
payments increasing. 

 Review maturity of scheme at each 
triennial valuation. 

 Deficit contributions specified as lump 
sums, rather than percentage of 
payroll to maintain monetary value of 
contributions. 

 Cashflow position monitored monthly. 
 

2 3 

Low 
 

6 
 
 

City Treasurer June 2017 

8 

STRATEGIC: REGULATION 
Pensions legislation or regulation 
changes resulting in an increase in 
the cost of the scheme or 
increased administration. 

 Maintain links with central 
government and national bodies to 
keep abreast of national issues. 

 Respond to all consultations and 
lobby as appropriate to ensure 
consequences of changes to 
legislation are understood. 
 

3 4 

Medium 
 

12 
 
 

City Treasurer 
and Director of 

People Services 
June 2017 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 66



   Residual 
risk score 

   

Ref Risk Mitigating Actions 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

Im
p

a
c
t 

Risk 
Rating 

Officer 
responsible 

Next 
Review 

Date 

9 

STRATEGIC: REGULATION 
Introduction of European Directive 
MiFID II results is a restriction of 
Fund’s investment options and an 
increase in costs 
 

 Officers are engaging with Fund 
Managers to understand the position 
better 

 Knowledge and Skills Policy in place 
for Officers and Members of the 
Committee 

 Maintain links with central 
government and national bodies to 
keep abreast of national issues. 
 

2 2 

Very Low 
 
4 City Treasurer June 2017 

10 

OPERATIONAL: GOVERNANCE 
Failure to comply with legislation 
leads to ultra vires actions 
resulting in financial loss and/or 
reputational damage. 
 

 Officers maintain knowledge of legal 
framework for routine decisions. 

 Eversheds retained for consultation 
on non-routine matters. 

2 2 

Very Low 
 
4 
 

City Treasurer June 2017 

11 

OPERATIONAL: GOVERNANCE 
Committee members do not have 
appropriate skills or knowledge to 
discharge their responsibility 
leading to inappropriate decisions. 
 

 External professional advice is sought 
where required 

 Knowledge and skills policy in place 
(subject to Committee Approval) 
 

 

3 3 

Low 
 
9 
 
 

City Treasurer June 2017 

  

P
age 67



   Residual 
risk score 

   

Ref Risk Mitigating Actions 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

Im
p

a
c
t 

Risk 
Rating 

Officer 
responsible 

Next 
Review 

Date 

12 

OPERATIONAL: GOVERNANCE 
Officers do not have appropriate skills 
and knowledge to perform their roles 
resulting in the service not being 
provided in line with best practice and 
legal requirements.  Succession 
planning is not in place leading to 
reduction of knowledge when an officer 
leaves. 

 Person specifications are used at 
recruitment to appoint officers with 
relevant skills and experience. 

 Training plans are in place for all 
officers as part of the performance 
appraisal arrangements. 

 Shared service nature of the pensions 
team provides resilience and sharing 
of knowledge. 

 

3 3 

Low 
 

9 
 

City Treasurer 
and Director 

of People 
Services 

June 2017 

13 OPERATIONAL: GOVERNANCE 
Inadequate, inappropriate or 
incomplete investment or actuarial 
advice is actioned leading to a financial 
loss or breach of legislation. 
 

 At time of appointment ensure 
advisers have appropriate 
professional qualifications and quality 
assurance procedures in place. 

 Committee and officers scrutinise and 
challenge advice provided. 
 

2 2 

Very Low 
 

4 
 

City Treasurer June 2017 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 68



   Residual 
risk score 

   

Ref Risk Mitigating Actions 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

Im
p

a
c
t 

Risk 
Rating 

Officer 
responsible 

Next 
Review 

Date 

14 

OPERATIONAL: GOVERNANCE 
London CIV has inadequate resources 
to monitor the implementation of 
investment strategy and as a 
consequence are unable to address 
underachieving fund managers. 

 Pension Fund Committee Chair is a 
member of the Joint member 
Committee responsible for the 
oversight of the CIV and can monitor 
and challenge the level of resources 
through that forum. 

 Tri-Borough Director of Treasury & 
Pensions is a member of the officer 
Investment Advisory Committee 
which gives the Fund influence over 
the work of the London CIV. 
 

3 2 

 
 
 

Low 
 
6 
 

City Treasurer June 2017 

15 OPERATIONAL: FUNDING 
Failure of an admitted or scheduled 
body leads to unpaid liabilities being 
left in the Fund to be met by others. 

 Transferee admission bodies required 
to have bonds in place at time of 
signing the admission agreement. 

 Regular monitoring of employers and 
follow up of expiring bonds. 
 

3 2 

Low 
 
6 
 

 
City Treasurer 
and Director of 

People 
Services 

June 2017 

  

P
age 69



   Residual 
risk score 

   

Ref Risk Mitigating Actions 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

Im
p

a
c
t 

Risk 
Rating 

Officer 
responsible 

Next 
Review 

Date 

16 

OPERATIONAL: FUNDING 
Ill health costs may exceed “budget” 
allocations made by the actuary 
resulting in higher than expected 
liabilities particularly for smaller 
employers. 

 Review “budgets” at each triennial 
valuation and challenge actuary as 
required. 

 Charge capital cost of ill health 
retirements to admitted bodies at the 
time of occurring. 

 Occupational health services 
provided by the Council and other 
large employers to address potential 
ill health issues early. 
 

3 2 

Low 
 

6 
 

City Treasurer 
and Director of 

People 
Services 

June 2017 

17 

OPERATIONAL: FUNDING 
Transfers out increase significantly as 
members transfer to DC funds to 
access cash through new pension 
freedoms. 
 

 Monitor numbers and values of 
transfers out being processed. 

 If required, commission transfer value 
report from Fund Actuary for 
application to Treasury for reduction 
in transfer values. 
 

2 3 

Low 
 

6 
 
 
 
 

City Treasurer 
and Director of 

People 
Services 

June 2017 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 70



   Residual 
risk score 

   

Ref Risk Mitigating Actions 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

Im
p

a
c
t 

Risk 
Rating 

Officer 
responsible 

Next 
Review 

Date 

18 

OPERATIONAL: ADMINISTRATION 
Loss of funds through fraud or 
misappropriation leading to negative 
impact on reputation of the Fund as 
well as financial loss. 

 Third parties regulated by the FCA 
and separation of duties and 
independent reconciliation 
procedures in place. 

 Review of third party internal control 
reports. 

 Regular reconciliations of pension 
payments undertaken by Pensions 
Finance Team. 

 Periodic internal audits of Pensions 
Finance and HR teams. 
 

4 2 

Low 
 

8 
 

City Treasurer 
and Director of 

People 
Services 

June 2017 

19 

OPERATIONAL: ADMINISTRATION 
Failure of fund manager or other 
service provider without notice 
resulting in a period of time without the 
service being provided or an 
alternative needing to be quickly 
identified and put in place. 
 

 Contract monitoring in place with all 
providers. 

 Procurement team send alerts 
whenever credit scoring for any 
provider changes for follow up action. 
 

3 1 

Very Low 
 

3 
 

City Treasurer 
and Director of 

People 
Services 

June 2017 

 
  

P
age 71



   Residual 
risk score 

   

Ref Risk Mitigating Actions 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

Im
p

a
c
t 

Risk 
Rating 

Officer 
responsible 

Next 
Review 

Date 

20 

OPERATIONAL: ADMINISTRATION 
Failure of financial system leading to 
lump sum payments to scheme 
members and supplier payments not 
being made and Fund accounting not 
being possible. 

 Contract in place with BT to provide 
service enabling smooth processing 
of supplier payments 

 Process in place for Surrey CC to 
generate lump sum payments to 
members as they are due. 

 Officers undertaking additional testing 
and reconciliation work to verify 
accounting transactions 

2 2 

Very Low 

4 
 
 
 
 

City Treasurer June 2017 

21 

OPERATIONAL: ADMINISTRATION 
Failure of pension payroll system 
resulting in pensioners not being paid 
in a timely manner. 
 
 
 

 In the event of a pension payroll 
failure we would consider submitting 
the previous months BACS file to pay 
pensioners a second time if a file 
could not be recovered by the 
pension administrators and our 
software suppliers.  
 

1 5 

Very Low 
 

5 
 

Director of 
People 

Services 
June 2017 

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 72



   Residual 
risk score 

   

Ref Risk Mitigating Actions 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

Im
p

a
c
t 

Risk 
Rating 

Officer 
responsible 

Next 
Review 

Date 

22 

OPERATIONAL: ADMINISTRATION 
Failure to pay pension benefits 
accurately leading to under or over 
payments. 
 
 

 There are occasional circumstances 
where under or over payments are 
identified. Where under payments 
occur arrears are paid as soon as 
possible usually in the next monthly 
pension payment. Where an 
overpayment occurs, the member is 
contacted and the pension corrected 
in the next month. Repayment is 
requested and sometimes we collect 
this over a number of months. 
 

2 3 

Low 
 

6 

 
 

Director of 
People 

Services 
June 2017 

23 

OPERATIONAL: ADMINISTRATION 
Failure of pension administration 
system resulting in loss of records and 
incorrect pension benefits being paid or 
delays to payment. 
 

 Pension administration records are 
stored on the surrey servers they 
have a disaster recovery system in 
place and records should be restored 
within 24 hours of any issue, files are 
backed up daily. 
 

1 5 

Very Low 
 

5 

 
 

Director of 
People 

Services 
June 2017 

 
 
 
 

P
age 73



   Residual 
risk score 

   

Ref Risk Mitigating Actions 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

Im
p

a
c
t 

Risk 
Rating 

Officer 
responsible 

Next 
Review 

Date 

24 

OPERATIONAL: ADMINISTRATION 
Administrators do not have sufficient 
staff or skills to manage the service 
leading to poor performance and 
complaints. 
 
 

 Surrey CC administers pensions for 
Surrey, East Sussex and is taking on 
our Triborough partners. They have a 
number of very experienced 
administrators two of whom tuped to 
them from LPFA with our contract.  
Where issues arise the Pensions 
Liaison Officer reviews directly with 
the Pensions Manager at Surrey. 
More detailed performance reports 
are being developed. 

2 3 

Low 
 

6 

 
 

Director of 
People 

Services 
June 2017 

25 

Operational: Administration 
BT unable to provide monthly or end of 
year interface files in a format suitable 
for Surrey CC to update service 
records and undertake day to day 
operations. Inaccuracies in service 
records held on the pensions 
administration system may impact on 
the triennial funding valuation at March 
2016 and notifications to starters and 
leavers.  

 Issue has been escalated by the 
Chief Executive for high level 
resolution with BT 

 Test files are currently with SCC 

 Actuary undertakes data cleansing on 
the service records and is confident 
this will mitigate the inaccuracies in 
service records 

4 3 

Medium 
 

12 

 

Director of 
People 

Services 
June 2017 

 

P
age 74



 

 

Pension Board 
  
 

Date: 9th May 2017 
 

Classification: General Release  
 

Title: 
 

Monitoring of Data to Surrey County Council 

Report of: 
 
 
Wards Involved: 
 

Lee Witham, Director of People Services 
 
 
All 

Policy Context: 
 

Service Delivery 

Financial Summary:  Limited 
 

 
 

1. Executive Summary 

1.1 The purpose of this paper is to provide the Board with an update on the Key 
Performance Indicators (KPIs) showing Surrey County Council’s (SCC’s) 
performance for the period February to March 2017. The detailed KPIs are shown 
in appendix 1. 

 
2. Current Position 

2.1 As reported in the papers for 6th March Pension Board, SCC had been asked to 

provide the KPIs on a quarterly basis. This was to allow time for SCC to prepare 

and collate the data and in turn WCC could present at the appropriate quarterly 

meetings, both Committee and Board. 

2.2 Following the last Board and Committee meetings and the concerns shown there, 

we have agreed with SCC to move to monthly KPIs so we can ensure that 

People Services are aware of any concerns or issues in a timelier manner and 

can intervene as appropriate.  

2.3 As mentioned in previous papers, WCC see this as a living document and it will 

be constantly reviewed to ensure that it provides the data required by WCC, 

Pension Board and Pension Committee to hold SCC to account in delivering an 

improved service. 

 

Page 75

Agenda Item 7



2.4 In the Board papers of 6th March we highlighted that we have drawn SCC’s 

attention to the following key areas where we expect to see an improvement: 

2.4.1 Where members are waiting for the payment of their pension benefit. 

2.4.2 Retirement options issued to members. 

2.4.3 Deferred benefits and payment of lump sum. 

2.4.4 Transfers out of non-LGPS schemes. 

2.4.5 Pension/redundancy estimates. 

2.4.6 Responding to members’ correspondence.  

2.5 The attached KPIs show improvements in most of the areas outlined in 2.4 above 

although there is still scope for more improvement and we will continue to push 

SCC for this.  In particular we believe ‘Notifications to members due a deferred 

benefit’ (line 14 in appendix) could be improved. This is where an ex-employee is 

about to reach an age when their payments are due to be made.  The agreed KPI 

is that notification is received 3 months before the date and although it has 

improved from just 2 weeks notice from the last reported KPI’s  to 2 months 

notice before the due date, it is still below expected levels. 

2.6 It is recognised that due to BT’s continuing inability to supply the required data, in 

particular with regards leavers, that SCC should not be held to account over 

these issues if it is clearly a BT error. WCC continue to work with BT to ensure 

that this information is forthcoming in the near future. In the meantime the 

retained pension team within People Services are working with SCC to provide 

this data. 

2.7 As previously reported SCC have acknowledged the need for a tighter control of 

case management in order to improve the KPIs. They have reorganised the 

pension administration team with two new team managers overseeing the 

running of our service.  

 
3. Summary 
 
3.1 The KPIs for February and March already reflect an improvement in the service 

provided by SCC. This is due in large part to the reorganisation SCC has 
implemented. 
 

3.2 People Services have also appointed additional resources to assist with some of 
the administration requirements that BT are currently failing to provide and this 
should help to ensure a continued improvement in the KPIs. 

Page 76



MONTHLY RESULTS FOR DECEMBER, JANUARY, FEBRUARY AND MARCH BASED ON NEW KPI REPORTING FEBRUARY AND MARCH REPORTING 

Description
Target time/date as per Partnership 

Agreement
No of Cases December Actual Score Dec No of Cases January

Actual Score 

Jan
Comments

No of Cases Feb and 

Mar

Actual Score Feb 

and March
Trend from January Comments

PENSION ADMINISTRATION
DEATH BENEFITS                                                                               

Notify potential beneficiary of lump sum death 

grant

5 days NA N/A NA N/A 2 100% NA

Write to dependant and provide relevant claim 

form
5 days 1 100% 1 100% 6 100% NA

Set up any dependants benefits and confirm 

payments due
14 days 5 60% 2 50%

3 cases late in total but paid on next 

available payroll runy
8 100%

RETIREMENTS                                                                                       

Retirement options issued to members 
5 days 2 50% 10 80%

3 late cases but we have increased 

resourcing in this area from February 

2017 to avoid any  future delays

49 89%
Large increase in volume of cases 

processed. 5 cases late

New retirement benefits processed for payment 

following receipt of all necessary documents
5 days 7 72% 3 100% 2 cases late in Dec 27 96% Large increase in volume of cases 

processed. 1  case late

Pension Payment, member to paid on the next 

available pension payroll following receipt of all 

necessary documentation

Next available pay run 7 100% 3 100% 27 100%

REFUNDS OF CONTRIBUTIONS                                                                                       

Refund paid following receipt of claim form 
14 days 4 100% 9 100% 12 100%

DEFERRED BENEFITS                                                                                       

Statements sent to member following receipt of 

leaver notification 

30 days 9 89% 7 71%

Volumes expected to increase once 

leaver forms received from BT and from 

other scheme employers

26 85%

Volumes expected to increase once 

leaver forms received from BT and 

from other scheme employers. 4 cases 

late.

DEFERRED PAYMENTS

Notification to members 3 months before 

payments due
3 months 8

Average 2 weeks in 

advance
11

Average 2 weeks 

in advance

Work process amended from February 

2017
89

New cases 2 months 

in advance. 
 Large increase in volume of cases 

processed following review. New cases 

now up to 2 months in advance.

Lump Sum ( on receipt of all necessary 

documentation)
5 days 8 50% 10 50%

We have increased resourcing in this 

retirement area from February 2017 to 

avoid any  future delays

26 96%

1  case late.

Pension Payment, member to paid on the next 

available pension payroll following receipt of all 

necessary documentation

Next available pay run 8 100% 10 100% 26 100%

NEW JOINERS                                                                              

New starters processed
30 days 20 100% 1 100%

Awaiting interface from BT so numbers 

only show records created manually
NA NA NA

Awaiting interface from BT so numbers 

only show records created manually

TRANSFERS IN                                                                                          

Non LGPS transfers-in quotations
30 days 2 100% 16 100% 8 100%

Non LGPS transfers-in payments processed 30 days NA NA NA NA NA

TRANSFERS OUT                                                                                  

Non LGPS transfers-out quotations processed
30 days 7 86% 20 70% 30 86%

4 cases late

Non LGPS transfers out payments processed 30 days 2 100% 4 100% NA NA NA

Interfunds In - Quotations 30 days 9 100% NA

New measure.

Interfunds In - Actuals 30 days 2 100% NA
New measure.

Interfunds Out - Quotations 30 days 21 86% NA
New measure. 3 cases late

Interfunds Out - Actuals 30 days 8 100% NA
New measure.

ESTIMATES

1-10 cases 5 Days 9 89% 5 60% 2 cases late in January 6 83%
1 case late

11-50 cases Agreed with WCC NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

51 cases or over Agreed with WCC 80 plus 100% See Dec entry See Dec entry
Large exercise carried out on behalf of 

WCC in Dec and Jan
NA NA NA

MATERIAL CHANGES

Any changes to data which materially affect 

actual or potential benefits to be processed 

within 30 days of receiving all necessary data

30 days 44 100% 221 100%

Includes Change of Bank account, 

address, expression of wish. Large 

number of bulk bank changes in January. 

141 100%

BUYING ADDITIONAL PENSIONS

Members notified of terms of purchasing 

additional pension
15 days 0 100% 1 100% NA NA NA

Monthly Pensioner Payroll 
Full reconciliation of payroll and ledger report 

provided to WCC
Last day of month 100% 100% 100%

Issue of monthly payslips 3 days before pay day 100% 100% 100%

RTI file submitted to HMRC 3 days before pay day 100% 100% 100%

BACS File submitted for payment 3 days before pay day 100% 100% 100%

P35 EOY Annual Annual 31-Mar-17

Annual Exercises
ANNUAL BENEFIT STATEMENTS                                                                                          

Issued to Active members
31 August each year Annual Annual NA Annual NA

ANNUAL BENEFIT STATEMENTS                                                                                          

Issued to Deferred members
31 August each year Annual Annual NA Annual NA

P60s Issued to Pensioners                                                                                          31 May each year Annual Annual 100% NA
Issued April 2017

Apply Pensions Increase to Pensioners April each year Annual Annual 100% NA

Pensioners Newsletter April each year Annual Annual 100% NA
Issued April 2017

CUSTOMER SERVICE
CORRESPONDENCE
Acknowledgement if more than 5 days 2 days
Response 10 days 18 89% 28 75% 67 76%

3rd party enquires 10 days Nil Nil NA NA NA

Helpdesk Enquiries

Volumes of Enquiries Handled By Helpdesk Number of Enquiries Handled 432 79% FPF 561 83%FPF

FPF means enquiries resolved as 'First 

Point Fix' by Helpdesk team that did not 

require referral to Operations team

1347 82% FPF rate. 82% FPF rate.

Customer Surveys
Monthly survey to retirees Percentage Satisfied with Service Quarterly Quarterly Due After End of March Pending report

All Quotations issued within statutory 

timescales. Agreement at meeting 

between SCC and WCC in Feb 2017 that 

future reports will identify LGPS transfers 

as additional measure. 

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Pension Board 
  
 

Date: 9th May 2017 
 

Classification: General Release  
 

Title: 
 

Members’ Perspective of the Pension Fund 
Administration  
 

Report of: 
 
 
Wards Involved: 
 

Lee Witham 
Director of People Services 
 
All 

Policy Context: 
 

Service Delivery 

Financial Summary:  Limited 
 

 
 

1. Executive Summary 

1.1 Following the last meeting of the Pension Fund Committee, People Services have 
been requested to update the Pension Board on proposals to engage with 
members of the fund, to ascertain their views on the pension administration 
service.  

 
 

2. Current Position 

2.1 The Pension Board have previously been advised of issues that the Council is 
experiencing with BT, who provide the combined Payroll, HR and Finance 
services.  
 

2.2 Additionally the Board are aware that the pension administrator Surrey CC has 
had some performance challenges, which have been highlighted within the KPI 
updates provided. 
 

2.3 Both issues impact the pension service that members receive. Improvements to 
both elements are being managed by People Services. 
 

2.4 The Pension Fund Committee has asked the Pension Board to prioritise 
engagement with members to determine their view of the pension service. Where 
areas of concern are identified by members, the board can then support work to 
address the issues to improve members’ overall experience. 

 

Page 79

Agenda Item 8



 
2.5 Officers are requesting that the Pension Board, approve a “Pension: Your 

Thoughts Survey” that will be sent out to all fund employers for distribution to 
their staff.  They will then be able to feedback on any experience that they have 
had of the pension administration service.  In addition we will ask Surrey CC to 
add the survey link with all retirements and general correspondence. It is 
proposed that the survey would remain open for 30 days to be able to provide a 
wide variety of responses and to generate meaningful data for the board to 
consider before making recommendations to the Pension Fund Committee. 
 

2.6 Officers are proposing that the survey will ask a number of questions on the 
member experience when dealing with pension issues. It is proposed to focus 
particularly on response times and member communication and whether these 
met their expectations. Input from Pension Board members to the type of 
questions they wish to see in the survey is requested. Officers are also 
recommending working with Unison in the construction of the survey. The survey 
will be anonymous and take no more than 5 minutes to complete, to ensure as 
many people as possible feel able to respond and provide the most valuable data 
to the Board. 
 
 

3. Summary 
 
3.1 People Services request agreement to draft a “Pension: Your Thoughts Survey” 

based on input from Pension Board in consultation with Unison. The survey will 
be sent out to employers and asked to be distributed to their staff who have 
access to the WCC LGPS fund. WCC will promote the survey internally via the 
intranet. In addition we will ask Surrey CC to send out the survey link with 
retirements and general correspondence.  The survey will be open for 30 days. 
 

3.2 Survey results will be bought back to a future Pension Board. 
 

Page 80



 

 

 

Pension Board 
  
 

Date: 9 May 2017 
 

Classification: General Release  
 

Title: 
 

Pension Board Forward Plan 

Report of: 
 
 
Wards Involved: 
 

Steven Mair 
City Treasurer 
 
All 

Policy Context: 
 

Effective Control over Council Activities 

Financial Summary:  There are no financial implications arising from 
this report 
 

 
1. Executive Summary 

1.1 This report presents the forward plan of work for the Pension Board over 
the coming twelve months and incorporates the forward plan for the 
Pension Fund Committee. 
 

1.2 Representatives of the Board attended the last Pension Fund Committee 
meeting on 21 March 2017 to agree the areas of work to be distributed 
between the two separate Bodies.  This report summarises those 
discussions.  

 
1.3 At the joint meeting, it was agreed that the Chairs of the Pension Fund 

Committee and Pension Board would meet separately to further discuss 
the work plan.  At the time of writing, this meeting had yet to take place but 
a verbal update will be provided to the Pension Board at the 9th May 
meeting. 

 

2. Recommendations 

2.1 The Board notes the contents of this paper and the verbal update to be 

provided at the Pension Board meeting on 9 May. 

 

2.2 The Board considers other areas of Pension Fund work which could be 

undertaken by the Pension Board during the year. 

 

Page 81

Agenda Item 9



 

3. Background 

3.1 The current Forward Plan identifies the expected agenda items for the 

Board over the next twelve months and is attached as Appendix 1.  The 

Forward Plan for the Pension Committee over the same period is also 

included for information (Appendix 2).   

 

3.2 Members of the Pension Board and the Pension Fund Committee have 

each commented in previous meetings that there has been some overlap 

between the work of the two separate bodies to date and further 

duplication should be avoided.   

 

3.3 With this in mind, the Chair of the Pension Fund Committee invited the 

Pension Board to the last Committee meeting on 21 March 2017 to 

discuss a way forward and seek further clarification on the roles of the 

Board and the Committee.   

 

3.4 Four representatives from the Pension Board attended the meeting on 21 

March.  Pension Board Members commented that they should play a 

scrutiny role in ensuring that the Pension Scheme was compliant with 

regulations.  It was also suggested that the Pension Board could focus on 

the administration of the scheme.   

 

3.5 The Pension Fund Committee were concerned that they had no direct 

connection with Pensions Fund issues as they were not Members of the 

scheme themselves.  However they recognised that Members of the 

Pensions Board, as they were either live, deferred or pensioner Members 

of the scheme, were much closer to what was going on.  As such they 

suggested that the Board as part of its scrutiny process provide this 

function to the Pension Fund Committee. 

 

3.6 Members of the Pension Fund Committee concurred that this was a 

possible way forward for the Board’s role to progress.  It was agreed that 

the Chairmen of the Committee and Board should meet jointly with the 

Interim Director of Treasury and Pensions, to discuss the matter further. 

 

3.7 At the time of writing, this meeting had yet to take place.  A verbal update 

will be provided to Members on 9 May. 

 

3.8 The Board is invited to review the proposed Forward Plan and indicate any 

amendments.   

Page 82



 
 
 

 
 

If you have any queries about this Report or wish to inspect any of the 

Background Papers  please contact:   

 

Nikki Parsons nparsons@westminster.gov.uk  Tel: 020 7641 6925 

 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS:  None 

 
APPENDICES:  

 
Appendix 1 – Pension Board Forward Plan – May 2017 
 
Appendix 2 – Pension Fund Committee Forward Plan – May 2017 

 

Page 83

mailto:nparsons@westminster.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 
PENSION BOARD  Forward Plan – May 2017 
 

Area of work 6 July 2017 13 November 2017 29 January 2018  May (TBC) 2018 

Standing 
Items 

Pension Fund Committee 
minutes 

Risk Register Review 

Pensions Administration 
Key Performance 
Indicators 

Forward Plan 

Pension Fund Committee 
minutes 

Risk Register Review 

Pensions Administration 
Key Performance 
Indicators 

Forward Plan 

Pension Fund Committee 
minutes 

Risk Register Review 

Pensions Administration 
Key Performance 
Indicators 

Forward Plan  

Pension Fund Committee 
minutes 

Risk Register Review 

Pensions Administration 
Key Performance 
Indicators 

Forward Plan 

Governance Annual Report on Pension 
Board Activities 

2018/19 Meeting Dates  

Knowledge & Skills Policy 
and Training Needs 
Annual Review 

Contracts Monitoring Appointment of the Chair / 
Vice Chair 

Training Update 

 

Pensions 
Administration 

Annual Benefit Statement 
Timeline 

Pensions Administration 
Strategy Review 

Discretionary Policies 
Review 

Promotion of Scheme 
Membership  

Admissions Policy Review 

  

Finance Pension Fund Annual Review of Pension Fund  Asset Pooling Progress 

P
age 85



Area of work 6 July 2017 13 November 2017 29 January 2018  May (TBC) 2018 

Accounts and Audit 
Findings 

FSS Review 

Pension Fund Fees and 
Costs  

Annual Report  

Asset Pooling Progress 
and Review 

and Review 

 

P
age 86



Appendix 2 
PENSION FUND COMMITTEE  Forward Plan – May 2017 
 

Area of work 22 Jun 2017 12 Oct 2017 7 Dec 2017 8 Mar 2018 

Standing 
Items 

Pension Board minutes 

Quarterly Performance 
Reports 

Quarterly Fund Financial 
Management Update 

Pensions Administration 
Key Performance 
Indicators 

Forward Plan 

Pension Board minutes 

Quarterly Performance 
Reports 

Quarterly Fund Financial 
Management Update 

Pensions Administration 
Key Performance 
Indicators 

Forward Plan 

Pension Board minutes 

Quarterly Performance 
Reports 

Quarterly Fund Financial 
Management Update 

Pensions Administration 
Key Performance 
Indicators 

Forward Plan 

Pension Board minutes 

Quarterly Performance 
Reports 

Quarterly Fund Financial 
Management Update 

Pensions Administration 
Key Performance 
Indicators 

Forward Plan  

Governance Pension Fund Annual 
Report and Accounts 
2016/17 

Progress on compliance 
with TPR Code of Practice 

Review of Governance 
Compliance Statement 

Business Plan 

Annual report of Pension 
Board activities 

Review of Pension Fund 
expenses 

 

 Investment Strategy 
Statement Review 

 

Investments Pooling and CIV update 

Investment Strategy 
Review 

Annual report to Scheme 
Advisory Board re pooling 
arrangements 

Pooling and CIV update 

Investment Strategy 
Review 

Pooling and CIV update 

Investment Strategy 
Review 

Fund Manager Monitoring 
Arrangements 

Pooling and CIV update 

Investment Strategy 
Review 

Feedback from Annual 
fund manager monitoring 
day 

 
 
 

P
age 87



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Review of the Investment Strategy Statement
	6 Risk Register Review - Focusing on Risk 25
	6 - Appendix 1 - PS Admin Risk Log
	6 - Appendix 2 - Risk Register

	7 Monitoring of Data to Surrey County Council
	7 - Appendix - KPIs

	8 Members' Perspective of the Pension Fund Administration
	9 Future Work Plan
	9 - Appendix 1 - Pension Board Forward Plan
	9 - Appendix 2 - Pension Fund Committee Forward Plan


